AGREEMENT

BETWEEN

TOWN OF AMHERST, COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK

<u>AND</u>

CIVIL SERVICE EMPLOYEES ASSOCIATION, INC.

LOCAL 1000, AFSCME, AFL-CIO

TOWN OF AMHERST UNIT OF LOCAL 815-6768

<u>January 1, 2024 – December 31, 2028</u>

TABLE OF CONTENTS

LEGISLATIVE REVIEW	
PREAMBLE	1
WITNESSETH	1
ARTICLE 1 - RECOGNITION	2
ARTICLE 2 - MANAGEMENT	2
ARTICLE 3 - CHECK OFF OF BARGAINING UNIT DUES	3
ARTICLE 4 - WORKING CONDITIONS	4
ARTICLE 5 - COMPENSATION	5
ARTICLE 6 - MILEAGE ALLOWANCE	9
ARTICLE 7 - LONGEVITY PAY	9
ARTICLE 8 - RETIREMENT BENEFITS	10
ARTICLE 9 - OVERTIME	11
ARTICLE 10 - MEDICAL COVERAGE	13
ARTICLE 11 - RECIPROCAL RIGHTS	17
ARTICLE 12 - GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE	19
ARTICLE 13 - MINIMUM EMPLOYMENT	23
ARTICLE 14 - NO STRIKE CLAUSE	23
ARTICLE 15 - SALARIES	24
ARTICLE 16 - CIVIL SERVICE PROCEDURES	24
ARTICLE 17 - ATTENDANCE	24
ARTICLE 18 - HOLIDAYS	25
ARTICLE 19 - VACATION	26
ARTICLE 20 - SICK LEAVE	29
ARTICLE 21 - LEAVE OF ABSENCE WITH PAY	32
ARTICLE 22 - LEAVE OF ABSENCE WITHOUT PAY	33
ARTICLE 23 - MILITARY LEAVE OF ABSENCE	35
ARTICLE 24 - CLOTHING ALLOWANCE	35
ARTICLE 25 - WORK FORCE CHANGES	36
ARTICLE 26 - JOB POSTINGS	39
ARTICLE 27 - SENIORITY	40

ARTICLE 28 - LAYOFF	41
ARTICLE 29 - RECALL	41
ARTICLE 30 - DISCIPLINE	42
ARTICLE 31 - PERSONNEL FILE	42
ARTICLE 32 - SAVINGS CLAUSE	43
ARTICLE 33 - IMPASSE PROCEDURE	43
ARTICLE 34 - SAFE PLACE TO WORK	43
ARTICLE 35 - RESIDENCY	44
ARTICLE 36 - GENDER CLAUSE	44
ARTICLE 37 - VOLUNTARY SEPARATION INCENTIVE	44
ARTICLE 38 - FLEXIBLE HIRING PROCEDURE	45
ARTICLE 39 - EFFECTIVE DATE	46
2024 Salary Schedule – Schedule A	47
Salary Schedule A	49
2025 Salary Schedule A	51
2026 Salary Schedule A	53
2027 Salary Schedule A	55
2028 Salary Schedule A	56
2024 Salary Schedule B	59
2025 Salary Schedule B	60
2026 Salary Schedule B	61
2027 Salary Schedule B	62
2028 Salary Schedule B	63
2025 Salary Schedule C	64
2026 Salary Schedule C	65
2027 Salary Schedule C	66
2028 Salary Schedule C	67

LEGISLATIVE REVIEW

IT IS AGREED BY AND BETWEEN THE PARTIES THAT ANY PROVISION OF THIS AGREEMENT REQUIRING LEGISLATIVE ACTION TO PERMIT ITS IMPLEMENTATION BY AMENDMENT OF LAW OR BY PROVIDING THE ADDITIONAL FUNDS THEREFORE, SHALL NOT BECOME EFFECTIVE UNTIL THE APPROPRIATE BODY HAS GIVEN APPROVAL.

PREAMBLE

THIS AGREEMENT entered into by and between the TOWN OF AMHERST, COUNTY OF ERIE, STATE OF NEW YORK and the CIVIL SERVICE EMPLOYEES ASSOCIATION, INC., LOCAL 1000, AFSCME, AFL-CIO, TOWN OF AMHERST UNIT OF LOCAL 815 for the purpose of establishing for those employees covered by this Agreement equitable and uniform wage rates and working conditions compatible with joint responsibilities of the Town and its employees to service the public. It shall be the further purpose of this Agreement of the parties to promote the highest degree of efficiency in the conduct of the Town's services.

WITNESSETH:

It is mutually agreed and understood that this Agreement is made and executed pursuant to the Public Employees Fair Employment Act, Article 14 of the Civil Service Law of the State of New York as now is in effect and as may hereafter be amended from time to time, and also pursuant to the provisions of the Local Laws of the Town of Amherst.

For the purpose of this Agreement, the parties shall be hereinafter referred to as follows: Town of Amherst – "Town" – Civil Service Employees Association, Inc., Local 1000, AFSCME, AFL-CIO, Town of Amherst Unit of Local 815 – "CSEA"

<u>ARTICLE 1 – RECOGNITION</u>

The Town of Amherst, Erie County, New York hereby recognizes the CSEA as the exclusive bargaining agent for all full-time Town of Amherst employees listed in Schedules "A", "B" and "C" of this agreement except the following: All same or similar titles as those listed in Schedules "A", "B" and "C" of this agreement that are classified or designated as exempt; all elected officials, department heads and/or appointed positions; School Crossing Guards; all seasonal employees, temporary employees and part-time employees; third party sponsored employees; interns and those employees covered by any other bargaining unit.

The Bargaining Unit agrees that it will not interfere with, coerce or intimidate any employee into joining the Bargaining Unit. The Bargaining Unit recognizes that no employee is required to join the Bargaining Unit, but that every employee has the right to choose of his own free will as to whether or not he will or will not join the Bargaining Unit.

ARTICLE 2 – MANAGEMENT

Without limitations upon the exercise of its statutory powers, duties and responsibilities, except as herein specifically provided to the contrary, the Town Board and Department Heads have the unquestioned right to exercise all normally accepted management prerogatives, subject to the grievance procedure hereinafter provided, including:

1. Subject to the provisions of the Civil Service Law of the State of New York and such rules as the Personnel Officer of the County of Erie may adopt and make applicable to the Town to appoint such employees as it may require for the performance of its duties, fix and determine their qualifications, duties, job titles and compensation, to suspend, discharge,

discipline, promote, demote or transfer or release employees because of lack of work or for other proper and legitimate reasons.

2. The right to fix operating and personnel schedules, determine work loads, arrange transfers, order new work assignments, and issue any other order or directive intended to carry out the managerial responsibilities and duties imposed upon the Town officials by law.

ARTICLE 3 - CHECK OFF OF BARGAINING UNIT DUES

The Town shall deduct from the wages of employees and remit to the Civil Service Employees Association, Inc., Local 1000, AFSCME, AFL-CIO, 143 Washington Avenue, Albany, New York 12224, regular membership dues and deductions for group insurances for those employees authorizing such deductions. These deductions shall be made at times corresponding to the employer's regular payroll period.

Deductions for membership dues and group insurances shall be made from the employee's wages until said authorization is withdrawn in writing by said employee.

The CSEA, Inc. shall have the right to designate one (1) insurance representative for the purpose of explaining the insurance protection provided by CSEA sponsored group insurances, which designation shall be in writing, delivered to the Town of Amherst Human Resources Director on or after the effective date of this agreement, and shall subsequently be renewed, in writing, from year to year during the term of this agreement. The name and address of the insurance representative shall be set forth in the notice. The insurance representative shall not visit individual bargaining unit members covered by this agreement during working hours or on Town premises.

Any employee selecting the insurance coverage shall submit his determination for insurance, in writing, on a form approved by the Human Resources Director. The various forms of insurance available under this program will be consolidated for purposes of premium deductions. Periodic insurance premiums shall thereafter be deducted from the employee's pay. Failure on the

part of the union and/or its insurance representatives to strictly comply with the provisions of this section shall release the Town from any and all obligations, duties and responsibilities as set forth in Article 3.

CSEA, as the exclusive representative of employees covered under this Agreement, agrees to promptly provide the Town, upon demand by the Town to CSEA, with a list of members who have authorized the deduction of union dues and fees, and a list of members who have not authorized the deduction of union dues or any other fees, and to promptly update said list when changes occur to it. CSEA agrees to promptly refund non-members for any dues or agency fees that are erroneously remitted to it. CSEA further agrees to defend, indemnify and hold the Town harmless from and against any claims, actions or proceedings by any person or entity arising from deductions made by the Employer and/or other actions by the Employer for the purpose of complying with this Article.

ARTICLE 4 - WORKING CONDITIONS

The Town shall notify the Unit President or designee and Labor Relations Specialist or designee at least seven days in advance of any change in working methods or working conditions, except where such change is required because of an emergency or major disaster over which the Town has no control. There shall be no changing of an employee's regular schedule to avoid the payment of overtime.

In the event mechanical failure or other conditions cause Town office facilities to unreasonably fall out of comfortable temperature and/or humidity ranges for periods in excess of eight hours, the Town shall immediately meet with CSEA officials to arrive at a mutually agreed upon solution to grant employees relief until such time as temperature and/or humidity levels are restored to an acceptable range.

Personnel schedules require a minimum of 2-weeks' notice to modify the schedule unless an unexpected event/situation occurs. If an employee has numerous schedule changes in a calendar year, then the Human Resource Director shall evaluate the changes.

ARTICLE 5 – COMPENSATION

All CSEA members current or separated, including transition to exempt status (other than disciplinary dismissals or settlements) who did not leave service under any Town or State separation incentive shall receive retroactive pay for the year 2024.

Effective January 1, 2024, Schedules A & B shall be adjusted to reflect a 2% increase at each Step in accordance with Schedule A and B attached hereto.

Effective January 1, 2025, Schedules A, B & C shall be adjusted to reflect a 3% increase at each Step in accordance with Schedule A, B & C attached hereto.

Effective January 1, 2026, Schedules A, B & C shall be adjusted to reflect a 3.75% increase at each Step in accordance with Schedule A, B & C attached hereto.

Effective January 1, 2027, Schedules A, B & C shall be adjusted to reflect a 3.6% increase at each Step in accordance with Schedule A, B & C attached hereto.

Effective January 1, 2028, Schedules A, B & C shall be adjusted to reflect a 3.75% increase at each Step in accordance with Schedule A, B & C attached hereto.

Reallocation of Titles (These reallocations will also receive negotiated annual percentages)

Effective January 1, 2025, reallocate referenced job titles below as follows:

Recreation Attendant "B" from Grade 1 to Grade 3 (Schedule B)

Recreation Attendant "A" from Grade 3 to Grade 6 (Schedule B)

Records Inventory Clerk from Grade 4 to Grade 6 (Schedule A)

Cook from Grade 5 to Grade 7 (Schedule A)

Senior Records Inventory Clerk from Grade 6 to Grade 8 (Schedule A)

Recreation Leader (Sr.) from Grade 7 to Grade 9 (Schedule A)

Junior Accountant from Grade 8 to Grade 9 (Schedule A)

Jr. Planning Draftsworker from Grade 9 to Grade 10 (Schedule A)

Social Caseworker (Sr.) from Grade 9 to Grade 10 (Schedule A)

Laboratory Technician from Grade 9 to Grade 10 (Schedule A)

PR Coordinator from Grade 9 to Grade 10 (Schedule A)

Recreation Supervisor from Grade 9 to Grade 10 (Schedule A)

Assistant Accountant from Grade 11 to Grade 12 (Schedule A)

Accountant from Grade 14 to Grade 16 (Schedule A)

Plumber from Grade 14 to Grade 16 (Schedule A)

Electrician from Grade 15 to Grade 16 (Schedule A)

Supervising Accountant from Grade 16 to Grade 18 (Schedule A)

Associate Planner from Grade 18 to Grade 19 (Schedule A)

Assistant Plumber from Grade 12 to Grade 13 (Schedule A)

Senior Engineer Assistant from Grade 13 to Grade 15 (Schedule A)

Junior Municipal Engineer from Grade 14 to Grade 16 (Schedule A)

Principal Engineer Assistant from Grade 16 to Grade 17 (Schedule A)

Landscape Architect from Grade 16 to Grade 17 (Schedule A)

Senior Planner from Grade 16 to Grade 17 (Schedule A)

Payroll Processing Manager from Grade 16 to Grade 18 (Schedule A)

General Crew Chief (40 hours) from Grade 18 to Grade 19 (Schedule A)

Schedule B:

Grade 2, 3 and 4 old Step B becomes new Step A

Grade 5, 6, 7 and 8 old Step C becomes new Step A

Program Leader from Grade 7 to Grade 9

Emergency Services Coordinator from Grade 14 to Grade 16

Assistant Code Enforcement Officer from Grade 12 to Grade 13

Code Enforcement Officer from Grade 15 to Grade 16

Sr. Code Enforcement Officer from Grade 17 to Grade 18

Assistant Fire Inspector from Grade 12 to Grade 13

Fire Inspector from Grade 15 to Grade 16

Sr. Fire Inspector from Grade 17 to Grade 18

Assistant Plumbing Inspector from Grade 12 to Grade 13

Plumbing Inspector from Grade 15 to Grade 16

Sr. Plumbing Inspector from Grade 17 to Grade 18

Assistant Electrical Inspector from Grade 12 to Grade 13

Electrical Inspector from Grade 15 to Grade 16

Sr. Electrical Inspector from Grade 17 to Grade 18

PAID LUNCH PERIOD. All forty (40) hour employees listed in Schedule A shall receive a paid lunch period.

SHIFT DIFFERENTIAL. Effective January 1, 2025, in addition to the established wage rates, there shall be a shift differential as follows: all employees working the afternoon, night and weekend shifts, shall be compensated as follows:

AFTERNOON SHIFT	NIGHT SHIFT	WEEKENDS	
\$1.15/hour	\$1.35/hour	\$1.00/hour	

Shift premiums will be applicable only for hours worked and will not be paid for any paid time off. These shift premiums shall be compounded if an employee works afternoon or night shift on the weekends.

Employees whose normal schedule is the first shift (day shift) and who work overtime on afternoon, night or weekend shift for less than four (4) hours shall not receive shift differential for the overtime hours worked.

HAZARDOUS DUTY PAY. Effective 1/1/06, any employee that is required to work with a respirator or in a confined space shall be compensated an additional \$1.50 per hour for a minimum of one hour while assigned and performing such work.

STAND BY PAY. Effective January 1, 2003, any employee who is regularly assigned supervisory Snow and Ice duties for public roadways (November 1 through March 31), and required by the Town to be on stand-by, shall be compensated three (3) hours pay per day of their stand-by period. Effective 1/1/03, any employee who is regularly assigned Fire Safety duties, and required by the Town to be on stand-by, shall be compensated one (1) hour pay per day of their stand-by period. Stand-by periods shall be on a weekly basis (7a.m. Friday to 7 a.m. Friday) and distributed equally by weekly rotation. Should the employee be called to duty, he or she shall be paid at the appropriate hourly rate. Each employee on stand-by will be paid his or her respective stand-by pay per day, regardless of the number of total hours worked that week.

Any employee assigned to stand-by as defined above who is not available when called shall forfeit the premium pay for that day, and shall be further disciplined by being given one day off without pay.

BRIEFING PAY. Effective 1/1/06, prior to each shift, Public Safety Dispatchers and Complaint Writers shall be paid for Briefing Time, not to exceed fifteen (15) minutes per day. Such pay shall not to be considered overtime, and will be paid at the straight time rate.

STIPENDS. Stipends of \$600 for certifications obtained and maintained for the additional responsibilities effective January 1, 2025:

Pool Operator on Location
Certified Playground Safety Inspector
 Pesticide Applicator
 Confined Space Team
Underground Storage Tank Operator Class A & B
Backflow Tester Certification
Fertilizer / Herbicide Applicator

Certified Floodplain Manager

Certified Code Enforcement Officer

Certified Fire Investigator

Fire Extinguisher Technician

Certified Ice Technician

Public Safety Telecommunicator 1

All stipends for these positions will be paid in the first paycheck of December of each year.

ARTICLE 6 - MILEAGE ALLOWANCE

Any employee <u>required</u> to use their personal vehicle in the conduct of Town business shall be reimbursed at the current mileage rate established by the Internal Revenue Service. Travel to and from an employee's personal residence to and from a work location shall not constitute the conduct of Town business.

ARTICLE 7 - LONGEVITY PAY

All employees who have been engaged in full-time and continuous employment with the Town for the years indicated shall receive longevity pay on their anniversary date in accordance with the following schedules. For purpose of this Article: (i) part-time employment shall not be counted toward years of service: and (ii) where employment with the Town is interrupted for a period longer than a year for any reason except military leave and leaves of absence for which the employee is paid, the accumulation of longevity entitlement shall terminate upon the date of the interruption and shall begin upon the employee's return to full-time and continuous employment.

Employees Hired Prior to 1/1/2006					
After Completing	2024	2025	2026	2027	2028
5 years	\$ 1,200.00	\$ 1,300.00	\$ 1,400.00	\$ 1,500.00	\$ 1,600.00
7 years	\$ 1,300.00	\$ 1,400.00	\$ 1,500.00	\$ 1,600.00	\$1,700.00
10 years	\$1,450.00	\$1,550.00	\$1,650.00	\$1,750.00	\$1,850.00
15 years	\$1,550.00	\$1,650.00	\$1,750.00	\$1,850.00	\$1,950.00
20 years	\$1,650.00	\$1,750.00	\$1,850.00	\$1,950.00	\$2,050.00
25 years	\$1,750.00	\$1,850.00	\$1,950.00	\$2,050.00	\$2,150.00
Plus \$100 for each additional year at twenty-five (25) years and over.					

Employees Hired On or After 1/1/2006					
After Completing	2024	2025	2026	2027	2028
5 years	\$ 1,000.00	\$ 1,100.00	\$1,200.00	\$1,300.00	\$1,400.00
7 years	\$ 1,100.00	\$1,200.00	\$1,300.00	\$1,400.00	\$1,500.00
10 years	\$1,200.00	\$1,300.00	\$1,400.00	\$1,500.00	\$1,600.00
15 years	\$1,300.00	\$1,400.00	\$1,500.00	\$1,600.00	\$1,700.00
20 years	\$1,400.00	\$1,500.00	\$1,600.00	\$1,700.00	\$1,800.00
25 years	\$1,500.00	\$1,600.00	\$1,700.00	\$1,800.00	\$1,900.00
Plus \$100 for each additional year at twenty-five (25) years and over.					

ARTICLE 8 - RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Town agrees to maintain the present retirement plan as authorized by Law, known as 75-i with riders 60-b and 41-j.

ARTICLE 9 – OVERTIME

Section 1. All work performed over forty (40) hours in anyone calendar week shall be considered as overtime and paid for at the overtime rate of time and one-half. A weekly or biweekly paid employee's regular hourly rate shall be considered to be one-fortieth (I/40) of his regular weekly rate. When a weekly or bi-weekly paid employee works in any calendar week in excess of forty (40) hours, he shall be paid one and one-half times his regular hourly rate for such excess hours.

Section 2. Overtime will be paid only for hours actually worked in excess of forty (40) hours per calendar week. Paid absences for holidays provided for in Article 18, paid absences for vacation provided for in Article 19, paid absences for personal leave provided for in Article 21, paid absences for jury duty as provided for in Article 21, and paid absences for bereavement leave as provided for in Article 21 shall be considered as time worked for the purpose of computing overtime. Absences from work for any other reason, regardless of whether such absences are otherwise compensated or paid for, including, without limitation, absences for sick leave, meal breaks and time spent on stand-by, shall not be considered as time worked. Time spent on cleanup and rest periods in conformity with Article 17 shall be considered time worked. Compensatory time earned at straight time shall be counted as time worked for the purpose of computing overtime.

Section 3. Employees called in to work for emergency or other work which entitles them to a minimum of four (4) hours pay shall have only the time actually worked counted for overtime purposes. An employee who has been called in to work and receives the minimum four (4) hours shall not receive an additional four (4) hours if called back to work within those first four (4) hours for which he has already been paid.

<u>Section 4</u>. Subject to Department Head approval, employees shall be entitled to compensatory time on the basis of one and one-half hours off for each hour of overtime worked.

Section 5.

- (a) Overtime work shall be offered equally among all employees working in the same or similar job classification(s) within a department, or work site if applicable, on a rotational basis. The initial rotational list shall be established on the basis of seniority within the department.
- (b) On each occasion when overtime is necessitated, the opportunity to work such overtime shall be offered to the employee within the job classification(s) that perform the necessary work, who has the least number of overtime hours to his/her credit at that time. Whenever practicable, at least twenty-four (24) hours advance notice for overtime work will be provided, except for in the case of emergencies. If the employee does not accept the assignment, the employee with the next fewest number of overtime hours to his/her credit will be offered the assignment. This procedure shall be followed until the required number of employees needed, have been selected for the overtime work.
- (c) For the purpose of placement on the list, employees refusing overtime when asked, shall be charged with the number of overtime hours actually worked, provided that the employee is not on vacation, sick leave or any other excusable leave. Such refused hours shall be charged immediately after the work has been performed. Employees coming into the department by virtue of transfer, bid or new position shall be placed at the end of the overtime list and charged with the maximum number of overtime hours worked by the department.
- (d) A record of the overtime hours worked by all employees shall be posted in the department and updated as overtime is worked.
- (e) The distribution of overtime as referenced herein, for the period from November 1st through March 31st designated "Snow and Ice" activity for the Highway Department, shall not apply.
- (f) There shall be no changing of an employee's regular schedule to avoid the payment of overtime.

Section 6. The premium rate of one dollar and seventy-five cents (\$1.75) per hour shall be paid to all appropriate regularly-scheduled employees who are directly engaged in work, or who are called in outside their regular hours to directly engage in work caused by sewer cave-ins, or

high water conditions when 4" pumps are required to be placed in the streets, and/or when Plant influent exceeds 50 MGD and a second MAIN INFLUENT PUMP becomes operational at the Wastewater Plant.

In addition, a premium rate of one dollar and seventy-five cents (\$1.75) per hour shall be paid to all employees when assigned and while performing the following work:

- 1. Pesticide application.
- 2. Confined space entry all trained employees on the job assignment.
- Confined space rescue team assigned during confined space entries and rescue.

This rate shall also be paid to employees who are called in for sanding or snowplowing and related job assignments outside of 7:00 a.m. to 3:30 p.m. Monday through Friday and for any hours worked on Saturday and Sunday.

These premium rates shall be in addition to any overtime hours worked, but the additional premium shall not be added to the normal hourly rate in computing the overtime rate.

ARTICLE 10 - MEDICAL COVERAGE

Section 1. The Town agrees to provide and contribute to the cost of Family Type PPO medical coverage as is in effect January 1, 2006, under a plan issued by Independent Health or by any other company, provided the coverage is at least equal to that provided under the present policy with Independent Health.

The Town shall also continue to provide and contribute to the cost of a Traditional style plan issued by Independent Health or by any other company, provided the coverage is at least equal to that provided under the present Traditional style policy with Independent Health. Employees choosing the Traditional style plan shall pay the difference between the premium equivalent cost of the Traditional style plan and the premium equivalent cost of the PPO plan on a pre-tax basis, in addition to any required contribution pursuant to Article 10, Section 5 herein.

The Town shall have the option at any time to include or discontinue within the Independent Health Traditional style policy a \$250 hospitalization deductible. Such deductible shall be self-insured by the Town. Employees incurring the hospitalization deductible, or a portion thereof shall be reimbursed by the Town within two weeks of submission of a hospital bill to the Town.

Section 2. The Town will provide \$1/10/25 tiered prescription coverage with both of the aforementioned plans.

Effective September 10, 2013, the Town reserves the right to adopt the following revised prescription co – pay schedule:

Office and outpatient - \$10

Preventative - \$0

Prescription 3 tier co-payment 1/14/30

All prescription drug coverage referenced above shall be limited to those actively employed.

This coverage shall not be extended to those who subsequently retire.

Section 3. The Town will provide a dental plan through The Guardian Life Insurance Company of America or an equivalent carrier. This coverage shall be limited to those actively employed. This coverage shall not be extended to employees currently on retirement or those actively employed who subsequently retire.

Section 4. The Town shall provide vision coverage through Vision Service Plan (VSP) or an equivalent carrier. The coverage shall be limited to those actively employed. This coverage shall not be extended to employees currently on retirement or those actively employed who subsequently retire.

Section 5. All newly hired employees shall be eligible for health insurance coverage following ninety (90) days of employment (or pursuant to Federal guidelines if fewer than 90 days is mandated).

Employees hired on or after September 10, 2013 shall contribute 20% of the annual premium equivalent for health insurance, including prescription drug, dental and vision immediately upon eligibility. This payment shall be made through payroll deduction biweekly on a pre-tax basis.

Employees hired prior to September 10, 2013, shall contribute 15% of the annual premium equivalent for health insurance, including prescription drug, dental and vision immediately upon eligibility. This payment shall be made through payroll deduction biweekly on a pre-tax basis.

<u>Section 6</u>. For pregnancies, the Town agrees to take such steps as are necessary to provide reimbursement to employees for physicians' services in an amount equal to the difference between that provided by the medical coverage of Section 1 of this Article and \$400.00.

Section 7. Upon reasonable advance written application or notice to the Human Resources Department, employees may continue health insurance coverage in the Town of Amherst health insurance group while on authorized leave without pay (excluding leaves because of extended illness pursuant to provisions of current agreement) provided that the employee makes full payment of the monthly premium equivalent on or before the first day of each month that the employee is on leave.

Section 8. Employees who retire shall have their medical coverage discontinue on the last day of the month in which they retire. However, retirees may, at their option, elect to continue their health insurance coverage provided they make the required premium equivalent payments to the Town of Amherst for such health insurance coverage.

Employees who retire may, at their option, elect to continue their dental coverage provided they make the required premium equivalent payments to the Town of Amherst for such dental coverage.

Employees who retire may, at their option, elect to continue their vision coverage provided they make the required premium equivalent payments to the Town of Amherst for such vision coverage.

Section 9. Double Coverage - The Town agrees to pay employees Seven Hundred and Fifty dollars (\$750.00) per year for waiving individual coverage, and One Thousand, Five Hundred dollars (\$1,500.00) per year for waiving family coverage. Effective January 1, 2020, the amount of the payment for waiving individual coverage shall increase to One Thousand, Five

Hundred dollars (\$1,500.00) per year, and the amount of the payment for waiving family coverage shall increase to Three Thousand dollars (\$3,000.00) per year.

Such option must be exercised each year during the month of October (Open Enrollment Period) to be effective the following January 1. This option is not self-renewing, and employees wishing to receive a waiver payment must notify the Human Resources Office *each* year during the month of October in order to be eligible for payment. Payment will be issued the first pay period in April of the following year.

This payment can be made only when the employee signs a statement that the employee has or will procure health insurance through his spouse's employment, other employment of the employee, or through a private insurance plan. The statement shall contain a waiver of all responsibility and hold harmless the Town and the Bargaining Unit for any consequences that may arise when an employee exercises this option.

The Town agrees to let the employee rejoin the plan after one year. The employee must notify the Town in writing in October for coverage to be effective the following January 1. If the employee wishes to rejoin the plan within the year, the employee must show an unanticipated change in circumstances regarding the alternative health plan (non-voluntary loss of coverage), and repay the prorated portion of the waiver payment.

Employees who resign or who are terminated prior to the end of the year shall repay the prorated portion of such payment. Employees on probation may waive their health insurance coverage at the time of eligibility and be paid on a prorated basis for the remainder of the calendar year.

If both husband and wife are employed by the Town with no dependent children, they shall be eligible for two (2) individual health insurance policies. In the event family coverage becomes necessary due to the addition of dependents, the change from individual to family coverage shall occur as soon as possible. If both husband and wife are employed by the Town with dependent children, they shall be eligible for one family plan policy, and the double coverage waiver for one individual policy pursuant to this section.

Employees exercising the waiver option pursuant to this section shall remain eligible for dental and vision coverage subject to Section 5 and any other applicable Sections of Article 10.

Employees hired after September 10, 2013, shall not be eligible for any Health Insurance Waiver for double coverage. However, effective January 1, 2020, ALL employees shall be eligible for the Health Insurance Waiver for double coverage, regardless of date of hire.

Section 10. The parties agree to reopen negotiations with regard to the subject of Medical Coverage upon the written request of either party. In the event any insurance provider should unilaterally change, modify or delete any benefit, the parties agree to immediately negotiate the impact of such change, modification or deletion.

Section 11. The Town shall notify CSEA prior to entering a contract for health, dental, vision and prescription insurance to ascertain that such contract is equal in coverage to the current contract. The Town will allow a representative to discuss any part of the proposed health, dental, vision and prescription plan for clarification prior to implementation.

ARTICLE 11 - RECIPROCAL RIGHTS

<u>Section 1</u>. The Town recognizes the right of the employee to designate representatives of the Bargaining Unit to appear on his behalf to discuss salaries, working conditions, grievances and disputes as to the terms and conditions of this contract, and to visit the employee during working hours.

<u>Section 2.</u> The Town agrees not to interfere with the rights of employees to become members of the Bargaining Unit, and there shall be no discrimination, interference restraint or coercion by the Town or any Town representative against any employee because of union activity performed in an official capacity on behalf of the Bargaining Unit.

Section 3. The Bargaining Unit shall have the right to post notices and communications upon the bulletin boards maintained on the premises and facilities of the Town. The material posted shall be restricted to Bargaining Unit business and will not contain salacious or non-bargaining political material. Copies of such material shall be submitted to the Human

Resources Director. No such material shall be posted which is profane, obscene, defamatory of the Town or its representatives or which constitutes election campaign material for or against any person, organization or faction thereof.

Section 4. The representatives of the Bargaining Unit who are designated or elected for the purpose of adjusting grievances or assisting in the administration of this contract shall be permitted a reasonable amount of time free from their regular duties to fulfill these obligations which have as their purpose the maintenance of harmonious and cooperative relations between the Town and the employee and the uninterrupted operation of government. Any request for such leave shall be submitted in writing to the Department Head on the appropriate Bargaining Unit form.

<u>Section 5</u>. A single representative of the Bargaining Unit shall have the right to attend Statewide Conventions and meetings in pursuance of his or her obligations as delegate of the Bargaining Unit herein. The designated representative shall suffer no loss of pay and time shall not be charged to any accruals of the representative.

<u>Section 6</u>. Access to Premises. The employer agrees to permit a duly authorized representative of the Bargaining Unit to enter the premises of the employer for individual discussion of working conditions with employees, upon prior notice to the immediate supervisor, provided said representative does not unduly interfere with the performance of duties assigned to the employee.

Section 7. Employee representatives shall be designated to the Town in writing by CSEA.

Section 8. For the purpose of negotiating renewals or extensions of this collective bargaining agreement, the Town shall permit a maximum of four (4) employees time off from duty, upon reasonable advance notice to the Department Head, for the purpose of attending and participating in the negotiating sessions. The Union shall provide the Town with a list of names of employees participating in negotiations prior to the commencement thereof. In the event the Union demonstrates a fifth member of the bargaining team is required to effectively represent the Union,

the Union shall petition the employer for approval for a fifth member to serve, which approval shall not be unreasonably denied.

Section 9. The Town Shall install three (3) feet x four (4) feet locking bulletin boards, provided by CSEA, at the specific locations as follows:

Court Building
Engineering Department
Harlem Road Community Center (Youth Department)
Highway Department
Plant 16
Police Department
Recreation Department
Senior Center
Town Hall

These bulletin boards shall be for the sole purpose of posting bulletins, notices and material issued by CSEA. No such material shall be posted which is profane or obscene, or defamatory of the Town or its representatives or non-Union political/election material. Locks and keys for the bulletin boards shall be the sole and exclusive responsibility of CSEA.

Section 10. The Town agrees that in the event it establishes a new job classification(s), it shall provide the Bargaining Unit President with a copy of the description(s) and proposed salary level(s).

ARTICLE 12 - GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

The Town and the Bargaining Unit desire that all members of the Bargaining Unit be treated fairly and equitably. It is intended that this grievance procedure will provide a means of resolving grievances at the lowest level and that nothing in this Article should be interpreted as discouraging a member or his representative from discussing any problem in an informal manner with his immediate supervisor or department head. Such discussion shall not interfere with the right of any member to process grievances through the grievance procedure.

Grievances shall be processed in accordance with the provisions of this Article. The term "grievance" as used herein shall mean a complaint by either party to this contract that there

has been a violation, misapplication, misinterpretation, or inequitable application of this agreement provided, however, that the term "grievance" shall not apply to any matter as to which (a) a method of review is prescribed or provided by law or by any regulation having the force of law: or (b) the Town is not empowered to act.

To encourage the resolution of the grievance at the department level, it shall be the fundamental responsibility of supervisors at all administrative levels to make prompt determination respecting grievances in accordance with these procedures. Both parties shall have the right to present grievances in accordance with these procedures, free from coercion, interference, restraint, discrimination and reprisal by any person or party to this agreement.

A member may be represented at all steps of this grievance procedure by the Bargaining unit or counsel, or both. All grievance meetings shall be mutually agreed upon and scheduled by the parties.

When several members of the Bargaining unit have an identical grievance, the Bargaining unit may select one individual case for processing, with consent of the Town, with the understanding that the decision in such case shall be applied to the other identical cases.

A record of all grievances filed pursuant to these procedures and the disposition made thereof shall be maintained by the Human Resources Department for reference purposes.

The time limit specified herein shall be observed and followed, unless extended in writing by mutual agreement of the parties. These specified time limits shall be strictly observed and construed as conditions precedent to the further processing of any grievance. Failure of the grievant to request review of a determination made at any step of the grievance procedure within the specified time limit shall automatically conclude the grievance process as to such grievance.

Grievances shall be filed within ten (10) working days from the time the grievant became aware of the facts or omissions which gave rise to the grievance, unless for good cause, the grievant is unable to do so. The Steps of the grievance process, specified below, shall be followed and the completion of each step shall be a condition precedent to the institution of the next Step of the grievance process. In the event that a grievance has not been answered within the

timeframes outlined in this Article, the grievance will automatically be considered timely and moved to the next Step of the process. Employees shall have the right to union representation at any or all steps of the grievance process.

STEP 1

The grievant shall present his grievance orally to his immediate supervisor and attempt to adjust the matter.

STEP 2

If the grievance is not satisfactorily adjusted at Step 1, the grievant shall present his grievance in writing, on a form to be provided, to his immediate supervisor within ten (10) working days from the decision at Step 1. The written grievance shall contain a factual statement outlining the acts constituting the grievance, the date, time and place of the occurrence, and the relief requested. The written grievance shall contain a statement of the section of the Collective Bargaining Agreement or the written Rules of the Department which he contends have been violated. The immediate supervisor shall give his answer in writing within ten (10) working days of the receipt thereof. Employees shall have the right to make the Department Head aware of the Step 2 issue at any time during the grievance process.

STEP 3

If the grievance is not satisfactorily settled at Step 2, the Bargaining Unit representative, within five (5) working days, shall forward the grievance to the Bargaining Unit's Grievance Committee. If, upon review of the grievance, the Committee believes the grievance is valid, it will forward a copy of the written grievance and the written answer of the immediate supervisor to the Department Head within five (5) working days of receipt of the grievance by the Grievance Committee. The Department Head shall, within a period of five (5) working days of presentation to him, discuss the matter with the Grievance Committee in an attempt to satisfactorily settle the grievance. Should this discussion fail to produce a satisfactory settlement within five (5)

working days from the date of completion of the discussion, then separate written reports of the dispute shall be made by the Grievance Committee and the Department Head.

The written report made by the Bargaining Unit's Grievance Committee and the Department Head at Step 3 shall be filed within five (5) working days with the Human Resources Director, and at the same time, served on the other party.

The Bargaining Unit's Grievance Committee shall consist of three (3) members selected by the Bargaining Unit. One Committee member shall be permitted to leave his work with no loss of pay after notice to his supervisor for the purpose of adjusting a grievance at Steps 1 and 2, and all three (3) Grievance Committee members shall be permitted to attend the meeting at Step 3 with the Department Head with no loss of pay.

If, upon review of the grievance, the Grievance Committee determines that the grievance is not valid and should not be processed further, they shall, in writing, notify the department head and the Human Resource Director of that determination and the grievance shall be deemed to be terminated.

STEP 4

Should the grievance fail to be resolved, as outlined at Step 3, either of the parties may avail themselves of the services of the Public Employment Relations Board (PERB) to provide a list of five (5) arbitrators. The arbitration proceeding shall be conducted by the arbitrator as soon as possible after his selection. The method of selection of the arbitrator shall be that the party requesting arbitration shall strike one name of the five submitted and the other party shall then strike one name. This procedure shall be repeated until one arbitrator remains. The decision of the arbitrator shall be final and binding on the parties, and the arbitrator shall be requested to issue his decision within thirty (30) days after the hearing is concluded.

The parties shall share the cost of the arbitrator equally.

The arbitrator is prohibited from adding to, subtracting from, or modifying the terms of the Collective Bargaining Agreement or the written Rules and Regulations of the Department.

Each party shall be responsible for compensating its own representatives and witnesses. The grievant and the three Grievance Committee members shall be permitted to attend the arbitration hearing, but shall not be paid by the Town for said attendance, except for one Grievance Committee member who shall be excused from duty with no loss of pay.

If either party desires a verbatim record of the proceeding, it may cause such a record to be made, provided it pays for the record and makes a copy of the record available, without charge, to the other party and the arbitrator.

STEP 5

Should any person be aggrieved by the determination as provided for in this Article, application may be made for judicial review, as provided by law.

<u>ARTICLE 13 - MINIMUM EMPLOYMENT</u>

- 1. Each employee shall receive compensation based on a minimum time of thirty-five or forty hours per week, according to their regular work schedule.
- Employees called in for emergency work shall be paid a minimum of four hours' salary.

ARTICLE 14 - NO STRIKE CLAUSE

The CSEA further recognizes the status of the Town employees as "public employees", and the provisions of law applicable thereto which prohibit strikes, the willful absence from one's position, a stoppage of work or the abstinence in whole or in part from the full, faithful, proper performance of the duties of employment for the purpose of inducing, influencing or coercing a change in conditions or compensation, or the rights, privileges and obligation of employment.

The CSEA further recognizes that any public employee who engages in said acts is subject to the penalties provided under State Law.

The CSEA shall not engage in a strike nor cause, instigate, encourage or condone one. In the event a strike or work stoppage occurs, the CSEA shall exert its best efforts to prevent and terminate the same.

ARTICLE 15 – SALARIES

The payment of salaries and the granting of annual salary increments shall be pursuant to the Plan of Class Titles and Salary Ranges as approved by the Town Board of the Town of Amherst.

Whenever employees are required to work in a higher job classification, they shall be paid the rate of pay of the higher job classification for all hours actually worked in the higher classification.

The salaries and wages of employees shall be paid on the same day every two weeks. In the event this day is a holiday, wherever possible, the preceding day shall be the pay day.

ARTICLE 16 - CIVIL SERVICE PROCEDURES

Appointment, promotion, transfer, reinstatement, probation, disciplinary action, retirement and other Civil Service procedures shall be pursuant to the Civil Service Law and the Rules for the Classified Service of the County of Erie as issued by the Personnel Officer and the provisions of the Town Law of the State of New York.

Every appointment to a permanent position from an Open Competitive list, and any appointment to a position in the Non-Competitive or Labor Class shall be for a probationary term of not less than eight (8) weeks or more than twenty-six (26) weeks.

<u>ARTICLE 17 – ATTENDANCE</u>

1. Record of Attendance. Each department shall maintain a daily record of the attendance and punctuality of each employee.

- 2. <u>Tardiness</u>. Each department shall establish rules regarding penalties for tardiness, but such penalties shall not preclude disciplinary action in cases of tardiness.
 - 3. <u>Lunch Periods</u>. All employees shall have a lunch period of at least one-half hour.
- 4. <u>Rest Periods</u>. All employees' work schedule shall provide for a fifteen (15) minute rest period during each one-half shift. The rest period shall be scheduled at the middle of each half of the shift, whenever this is feasible. Rest periods shall not be used to begin a work shift late, or end a work shift early.
- 5. <u>Clean-up Time</u>. Employees shall be granted a fifteen (15) minute personal cleanup period prior to the end of each work shift.

ARTICLE 18 – HOLIDAYS

1. Paid holidays shall be New Year's Day, Martin Luther King, Jr. Day, Washington's Birthday, Good Friday, Easter (if worked), Memorial Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, Columbus Day (effective January 1, 2020), Veteran's Day, Thanksgiving Day, day after Thanksgiving, Christmas Day and any other day as may be approved by the Town Board.

Effective January 1, 2020, all employees shall be granted one Floating Holiday. Such Floating Holiday may be taken on a date of their choice with the Department Head's prior permission. Such substituted holidays may not be used solely for purposes of generating additional overtime compensation for the employee.

- 2. When a holiday falls on Sunday, the Monday following shall be observed as the holiday, and when such holiday falls on Saturday, the preceding Friday shall be observed as the holiday. Employees who are engaged in a Continuous Service Operation, shall observe Independence Day, Christmas Day and New Years Day on the day they actually fall if it is on either a Saturday or Sunday.
- 3. If emergency or continuous service requires that an employee work on one of the holidays listed in this Article, and such holiday work is authorized by the Department Head, the employee shall be paid their regular work day compensation, and also either be compensated at

the overtime rate or, with prior Department Head approval, be offered compensatory time off at time and one-half on an approved future date. It shall be the employee's choice to either be paid the overtime rate or accept compensatory time off to be used on a future date. At no point can the employee be forced to accept compensatory time.

4. If a holiday falls during an employee's vacation, the vacation shall be extended an extra day.

ARTICLE 19 – VACATION

- 1. Vacation Allowance.
- (a) Except where other provisions are made by law for annual, weekly, per diem or hourly employees, an employee shall be entitled to an annual vacation with pay not to exceed two weeks after completion of one year of continuous service, not to exceed three weeks after completion of five years of continuous service, not to exceed four weeks after completion of ten years of continuous service, not to exceed five weeks after completion of fifteen years of continuous service, and not to exceed six weeks after completion of twenty-five years of continuous service.
- (b) Employees hired after September 10, 2013 shall be entitled to one week of paid vacation after the first year, two weeks after two years, three weeks after seven years, four weeks after twelve years and 5 weeks after twenty years. Effective January 1, 2025, employees hired after September 10, 2013 shall be entitled to an annual vacation with pay not to exceed two weeks after completion of one year of continuous service, not to exceed three weeks after completion of five years of continuous service, not to exceed four weeks after completion of ten years of continuous service, and not to exceed five weeks after completion of fifteen years of continuous service and not to exceed 6 weeks after completion of 25 years of continuous service. In the event that supervision denies a vacation request, a member may appeal the denial directly to the Director of Human Resources. In the event that multiple weeks are denied after appeal, an employee may request a payout of rejected vacation time for up to two weeks of vacation at the end of the year.

- (c) As stated above, employees shall be entitled to an annual vacation with pay not to exceed two weeks after completion of one year of continuous service. However, effective January 1, 2020, following sixty days (60) of continuous service during the first year of hire, employees may use up to one week of vacation time prior to reaching one year of continuous service.
- (d) Current employees shall be provided with a one-time, one (1) additional vacation day annual adjustment for each year of the Agreement for a total adjustment of five (5) vacation days beginning at mutual ratification in 2019 for the life of this Agreement. This provision shall sunset at the expiration of the Agreement on December 31, 2023.
- 2. <u>Time of Vacation</u>. Vacation requests shall not be unreasonably denied. Wherever possible, vacations shall be granted at the time requested by the employee. If the nature of the work makes it necessary to limit the number of employees on vacation at the same time, the employee with the greater seniority shall be given his choice of vacation period in the event of any conflict over vacation periods. Vacation periods shall be taken each year.
 - 3. <u>Vacation Pay.</u> Vacation pay will be based on the employees' contractual hours.
- 4. <u>Vacation not Cumulative</u>. Vacation time shall not be cumulative, and if not taken, expires at the end of the employees annual vacation allotment period: except however, upon providing advance notice to the Department Head at least ninety (90) days prior to receiving their annual vacation allotment, employees may carry over a reasonable amount of previously earned vacation into the following vacation accrual cycle for a period not to exceed ninety (90) days.
- 5. Reinstatement and Leave of Absence. A leave of absence without pay or resignation followed by reinstatement within one year shall constitute an interruption of service, provided, however, that leave without pay for more than six months, or the period between resignation and reinstatement, shall not be counted in determining the eligibility for annual vacation in any calendar year.
- 6. <u>Vacation Pay at Retirement</u>. An employee who retires from the service of the Town will receive vacation pay on a pro rata basis for the calendar year in which he retires.

- 7. <u>Vacation Pay at Resignation</u>. Employees with a minimum of five (5) years of full time service who subsequently resign from service shall receive vacation pay_on a pro-rated basis for the calendar year in which they resign.
- 8. <u>Death.</u> In the case of death of an employee, payment for such vacation period shall be made to his estate.
- 9. Effective January 1, 2003, employees with earned vacation may elect to receive the cash equivalent of up to five (5) vacation days in lieu of taking such time off. In order to exercise this option, employees must provide written notice to the Department Head and Town Comptroller of their intention to receive such payment no later than August 1st of the year in which the vacation would normally be taken. Payment will be made by February 15th of the following year. The Town reserves the right to allow additional vacation days to be purchased solely at the discretion of the Town.
- 10. An employee may transfer and accumulate up to 30 weeks of unused vacation time into a special account to be used to pay for health insurance upon retirement. Each accumulated vacation day shall be converted to a dollar amount at the employee's rate at the time of retirement. If the employee does not use or discontinues use of the accumulated vacation time for health insurance benefits, the accumulated amount shall be paid to the employee in equal amounts over a five-year period. Any vacation banked for purposes of being applied toward the future payment for continued health coverage upon retirement is subject to all Federal and State withholding and tax requirements during the calendar year in which it is banked. In the event of the employee's death, payment shall be made to the employee's estate or a beneficiary designated by the employee, in a lump sum.

ARTICLE 20 - SICK LEAVE

- 1. <u>Application of Sick Leave</u>. Only permanent employees are entitled to sick leave as otherwise provided for in this contract.
- 2. Reasons for Granting Sick Leave. Sick leave with pay may be granted in accordance with this Article to an employee when incapacitated or unable to perform the duties of his position because of:
 - (a) Sickness or injury:
 - (b) Serious illness in the employee's immediate family requiring care and attendance of the employee. Immediate family shall include the parent, spouse, brother, sister, son, daughter, stepchild, grandparent, or other blood relative who is an actual member of the employee's household:
 - (c) Quarantine regulations:
 - (d) Medical or dental visits.
- 3. <u>Sick Leave Credits</u>. A credit for sick leave under this Article shall be allowed at the rate of one and one-quarter working days per month of service commencing as of the date of employment.

Effective January 1, 2025, Employees hired after December 31, 2002, shall accrue sick leave credit at the rate of one (1) working day per month of service. Such leave as is not used shall accumulate but not to exceed 300 days.

Prior to returning to work following three (3) or more continuous days of sick leave, employees may be required to provide a physician's certificate to the Director of Human Resources. However, medical documentation for absences of any duration may be required at the discretion of the Director of Human Resources if sick leave misuse or abuse is suspected and supported with documentation, and following consultation with a CSEA representative. In order to maintain confidentiality, the Director of Human Resources will in turn notify the Department Head

that the employee has complied with contractual obligations. In the event an employee is required to undergo a physical examination by a Town Doctor at the discretion of the Director of Human Resources before returning to work, the employee shall visit the Town Doctor and receive medical clearance prior to returning to work.

The Town agrees to contribute matching funds for the first three (3) years of employment for a CSEA Disability Income Protection Plan for employees hired after September 10, 2013, to be finalized and agreed by parties pending additional information.

4. Extended Sick Leave. An employee who has been engaged in full-time and continuous employment with the Town for at least five (5) years may receive additional sick leave with pay as may be approved by the Town Board, up to a maximum of seven (7) months, in addition to the sick leave accumulated by such employee. A leave of absence without pay without a resignation followed by reinstatement within one year shall not constitute an interruption of service.

Applications for extended sick leave will not be entertained unless the employee has exhausted all of his accrued sick leave and any other paid leave benefits such as personal leave, vacation, overtime, compensatory credits and all other accrued credits, and nothing contained elsewhere in this Agreement shall be construed to foreclose the Town from requiring the use of any such accrued leave or leave benefits prior to the consideration or grant of extended sick leave.

Employees on extended sick leave with pay pursuant to Town Board resolution shall not be entitled to accrue sick leave.

- 5. <u>Notice of Absence on Sick Leave</u>. When absence is required under this Article, the employee shall report the same to his immediate supervisor at least two hours before the starting time of his shift where possible.
- 6. <u>Sick Leave Records</u>. Accurate records of the attendance and sick leave status of each employee shall be maintained and open for his inspection.

- 7. <u>Transfer of Sick Leave Credits</u>. In case of transfer to a different department, accumulated sick leave shall be transferred with the employee and he shall receive credit in the department to which he is transferred.
- 8. Absence for Less than Full Day. Absences of less than a full day due to illness shall be chargeable to sick leave in one-hour increments, subject to Department Head or designee's approval.
- 9. <u>Injury on the Job</u>. When an employee is injured on the job, any time required immediately after the injury to obtain first aid or treatment by a physician shall be considered as time worked, unless he is admitted as an in-patient in a hospital.
- 10. <u>Absence Due to Injury</u>. Employees who are unable to perform the duties of their employment because of injuries received in the service of the employer, and who receive Workers' Compensation benefits shall receive a supplemental sum equal to the difference between their wages and their compensation benefits chargeable to sick leave on a pro rata basis.
- 11. <u>Physical Examination</u>. The expense of any physical examination requested by the Town shall be paid for by the Town and be performed during the employee's working hours.
- 12. Sick Leave Buy-back. The Town agrees that upon retirement, or the death of an employee, any accumulated unused sick leave up to a limit of 100 days can be bought back at a ratio of 1:3 (e.g., an employee with 280 days of unused sick leave may use only 100 days at a ratio of 1:3). The remainder, to a maximum of 165 days, can be applied to the employee's additional service credit for retirement as per Section 41-j of the New York State Retirement and Social Security Law.

In the alternative, employees wishing to apply accumulated unused sick leave toward either 100% or 50% (at the employees option) of the cost for continued health coverage upon retirement in lieu of a lump sum buy back may do so up to a limit of 100 days at a ratio of eighty (80) percent (maximum 80 days). Accumulated unused sick leave to be applied toward the payment for continued health coverage upon retirement is subject to all Federal and State withholding and tax requirements at the time of separation for retirement. If this option is chosen,

the up to 100 days used for payment toward continued health insurance is exhausted, and cannot be applied to the employee's service credit for retirement as per Section 41-j of the New York State Retirement and Social Security Law. However, the remainder, to a maximum of 165 days, may be applied in that matter. Employees may also elect to apply any or all accrued vacation time due upon retirement pursuant to Article 19 toward continued health coverage in the same manner.

13. Sick Leave Incentive. Effective January 1, 2020, employees who work their entire work schedule in any annual quarter (January 1 – March 31; April 1 – June 30; July 1 – September 30; October 1 – December 31) without using any sick leave or reporting late (except in the case of verified emergency) shall be awarded four (4) hours of compensation at their regular hourly rate. Sick Leave Incentive shall not be forfeited for any absence except sick leave (except for use due to snow or other emergencies), Workers' Compensation or disciplinary leave. Workers' Compensation hearings shall not be considered lost time for purposes of this incentive. Effective January 1, 2025, Sick Leave Incentive will be eliminated.

ARTICLE 21 - LEAVE OF ABSENCE WITH PAY

1. Leave Because of Death in Family. Leave of absence with pay of not to exceed five (5) days shall be granted to an employee in the event of death occurring in the employees' immediate family, namely, spouse, parent, child, sibling, grandchild, stepchild or stepparent who served in loco parentis. Leave of absence of not to exceed three (3) days shall be granted upon the death of an employee's grandparent, father-in-law, mother-in-law, brother-in-law, sister-in-law or any other blood relative residing in the employee's household. Leave of absence of not to exceed one (1) day shall be granted upon the death of an employee's aunt, uncle, niece, nephew or cousin. Employees may, upon prior request and approval of the Department Head in consultation with the Director of Human Resources and employee, be granted one (1) day to attend the funeral of individuals not included in the family set forth above.

 Leave for Jury Duty. On proof of required jury duty, leave of absence shall be granted with pay to all employees, provided, however, that such employees shall reimburse the Town for jury fees received by them.

3. Time off for Civil Service Examinations.

- (a) Permanent employees shall be allowed time off with pay to take promotional and open competitive Town Civil Service examinations.
- (b) Upon written application in advance to the Town, a permanent employee shall be allowed time off with pay on a day when he/she is scheduled to work 12:00 a.m. to 8:00 a.m. (midnight shift) to permit him/her to take a New York State Civil Service examination for a promotional position within the employment of the Town. Such provision will not be made in the event of an emergency or major disaster over which the Town has no control.
- 4. <u>Personal Leave</u>. Effective January 1, 2025, After completion of the probationary period, permanent, full-time employees shall be allowed five (5) personal leave days each calendar year, non-cumulative, providing they meet all eligibility requirements. For employees whose probationary period is completed after January 1 of any year, personal leave entitlement for the balance of the year shall be provided on a proportionate basis: i.e., one day of personal leave for each three (3) full months of service. Any unused personal leave days shall be added at the end of each calendar year to the employee's total number of sick leave credits, but in no event shall the total of sick leave credits exceed the maximum allowed under Article 20, Section 3.

In the event the personal leave is denied, the Department Head shall set forth the reason or reasons for the denial in writing either on paper or electronically.

ARTICLE 22 - LEAVE OF ABSENCE WITHOUT PAY

- Eligibility Requirements. Employees shall be eligible for leaves of absence after six (6) months service with the employer.
- 2. <u>Application for Leave Without Pay</u>. Any request for a leave of absence shall be submitted in writing by the employee to the Department Head. The request shall state the reason

the leave of absence is being requested and the approximate length of time off the employee desires, which shall not exceed one year.

- 3. <u>Maternity Leave</u>. In addition to sick leave entitlement, an employee may, at their option, retain up to five (5) sick days prior to the leave without pay. An employee shall be entitled to leave without pay for maternity leave, provided that the total of leave without pay and accumulated sick leave shall not exceed twelve (12) months. An adoptive parent shall be entitled to leave without pay for a period of not more than three (3) months from the date of an adoption, provided the adopted child requires the attention of the employee.
- 4. <u>Leave Because of Extended Illness</u>. When an employee has exhausted all of his sick leave credits and is still incapacitated and unable to perform the duties of his position, he may be granted a leave of absence without pay for a period not to exceed one year.

Employees on leave of absence without pay shall not be entitled to accrue sick leave.

- 5. Leave for War Work. A permanent employee may, at the discretion of the Department Head and approval by the Town Board, be granted a leave of absence without pay for a period not exceeding one year to enter the service of the Federal Government in time of war. Such leave of absence may be renewed for additional periods, not exceeding one year in each instance. However, no such renewal of leave of absence without pay shall extend beyond six months after the termination of the war.
- 6. Education Leave for Veterans. Any veteran who is qualified to receive education or training or vocational rehabilitation under the provisions of any Federal or New York State Law, shall be granted leave of absence without pay for the period of such education, training or vocational rehabilitation. Such leave of absence shall not extend beyond a period of four years, nor beyond the period for which the veteran shall be eligible to continue the education, training or vocational rehabilitation, and it shall terminate at any time that the veteran ceases actual attendance upon the courses required by the education, training or rehabilitation program.

- 7. <u>Educational Purposes</u>. On the approval of the Department Head, permanent employees may be granted leave of absence without pay for a period of one year for the purpose of acquiring additional education and training that will increase the usefulness and efficiency of the employee in his position.
- 8. Employment Opportunities. Employees shall be granted a leave of absence without pay to enable such employees to serve temporarily, provisionally, for trial periods, or for periods necessary to qualify for permanent appointment to a competitive class, or another position of a higher class that requires such conditions to be met, or where an employee is offered a job on a permanent transfer, so long as said employment is with any agency of the employer.
- 9. <u>Seniority: Return to position</u>. Employees shall be returned to the position they held at the time the leave of absence was requested.
- 10. <u>No Accruals</u>. While on leave of absence without pay as provided for in this Article 22, employees shall not accrue sick leave, personal days, vacation, holidays or other leave entitlements. In addition, the accrual of seniority will be suspended for the duration of the leave.

<u>ARTICLE 23 - MILITARY LEAVE OF ABSENCE</u>

Any employee who is required to render ordered military duty shall be granted military leave of absence pursuant to the Military Law.

ARTICLE 24 - CLOTHING ALLOWANCE

- 1. Effective January 1, 2025, the Town shall pay, per annum, a sum not to exceed two-hundred dollars (\$200.00) for the purchase of protective footwear to those employees currently provided with protective footwear. This footwear must appropriately provide protection for the hazards encountered by employees while performing the normal functions of their jobs within their respective departments as determined by the Department Head.
- Effective January 1, 2020, clothing allowance shall be eliminated for all employees. In exchange, adjustments to the Longevity Schedules as reflected in Article 7 above shall take effect.

3. Rain jackets, rain pants and heavy-duty pull-over boots shall be provided by the Town for those employees who are required to work in the field as determined by the Town.

All items as provided above remain the property of the Town and are only to be used in accordance with the departmental policy.

Upon separation, all items, other than those worn out through normal use, must be returned to the Town.

ARTICLE 25 - WORK FORCE CHANGES

1. Definitions.

- (a) "Position" means one of the positions included under one class title in Schedule A and B to the Agreement.
- (b) "Class" means a group of similar positions included under the same title in Schedule A and B.
- (c) "Salary/Wage Range" means the range of compensation from "A" to "J" appearing in Schedule A and from "A" to "K" appearing in Schedule B.
- (d) "Job Group" means a group of classes of positions allocated to the same salary/wage range set out in Schedule A and B.
- (e) "Increment Step" means the point in the increment scale reached through successful periods of actual service as designated in steps "A" to "J" appearing in Schedule A and "A" to "K" appearing in Schedule B.
- (f) "Actual Service" means active service in the position after deduction of any periods of leaves without pay. Military Leave, pursuant to Section 243 of the Military Law, shall be deemed actual service.
- (g) "Promotion" means the advancement of an employee to a higher class or the reassignment of an employee to a higher paying position.

- (h) "Demotion" means the reassignment, not requested by the employee, of an employee from a position in one job classification to a lower paying position in the same job classification or in another job classification.
- 2. New Appointments. An employee appointed to a position in a class title shall be paid the "A" rate of pay established for the class as set forth in Schedule A and B.

3. Increments.

- (a) The regular increment dates for employees covered by this Agreement shall be either January 1 or July 1, providing they have the required period of actual service. Employees appointed to a position shall be entitled to an adjustment of pay to the amount shown under the column "B" in Schedule A and B after nine (9) months of actual service on January 1 or July 1, as the case may be. Subsequent adjustments to the increments shown under "C" through "K" shall not be made until twelve (12) months from the date of the adjustment to the increment shown under "B", and not more frequently than annually thereafter. The adjustment to the increment shown under "D" shall be based solely on merit.
- (b) Employees promoted to a position shall be entitled to their first increment following promotion after six (6) months of actual service in the new position on January 1, or July 1, as the case may be. Subsequent adjustments will be treated as provided in subparagraph (a) above.
- (c) Employees voluntarily leaving Town service prior to 8/1/14, 8/1/15, or 8/1/16 shall have a sum of \$1000 added to base salary at time of separation for the year in which they leave service. (See also Article 5.)
- (d) Employees who are classified as Laborer and Laborer Crew Chief, but who are represented by the Bargaining Unit, shall not be covered by this subparagraph 3 of Article 25, but shall be subject to the same increment and adjustment rules and procedures in effect for Laborers and Laborer Crew Chiefs employed in the Town's Highway Department.
- (e) An employee appointed or promoted to a position in a higher job group shall receive a salary or wage rate at the increment step in the range for the higher position which

is nearest to, but not less than, the salary or wage rate paid to the employees at the time of appointment or promotion.

4. Demotions.

(a) A permanent full-time employee who accepts appointment to a position that is in a job group lower than the job group of the position in which he is serving, shall, upon appointment to the lower position, receive a salary or wage rate at the increment step in the salary or wage range in the lower job corresponding to the increment step reached in his former position.

(b) An employee who is relegated back to his previous position from a higher classification to which he was provisionally appointed because of his inability to prove to the Employer that he was able to fulfill the standards of the job, or pass a Civil Service Examination required for permanent appointment to that job, or who voluntarily relinquishes such job, shall not be considered as demoted.

5. Reinstatement.

- (a) A permanent full-time employee covered by this Agreement who has been laid off and subsequently reinstated to the same job in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement shall be reinstated at the same salary or wage step he occupied at the time of the layoff.
- (b) A permanent full-time employee who has resigned and is subsequently reinstated pursuant to the appropriate provisions of this Agreement to the same job shall be reinstated at the same salary or wage step he occupied at the time of resignation.
- (c) An employee who is promoted temporarily or provisionally to a higher position and who is returned to his position in a lower grade shall, upon return to the lower position, receive a salary or wage rate at the increment level he would have reached had he continued to serve continuously in that position.

6. Transfers.

- (a) Employees desiring to transfer to other jobs may submit an application in writing to their immediate supervisor. The application shall state the reason for the requested transfer.
- (b) Any existing Town of Amherst employee who is not in a CSEA represented position and transfers to a position within the CSEA bargaining unit will not take a decrease in rate of pay from their previously held position. These employees will also transfer any and all existing accruals with them and any contribution to a medical plan will continue at the same rate that they contributed before the transfer.
- 7. <u>Reallocation.</u> Upon the reallocation of a class of positions to a higher job group, the employee or the employees serving in the reallocated positions shall receive a salary or a wage at the increment step in the higher job group that corresponds with the increment step in which they were serving in the lower group.
- 8. Reclassification. When an employee class title is reclassified to a higher title and job group, it shall be considered as a new position and a promotion. The salary will then be determined in accordance with the salary rule on promotions.

9. Leaves of Absence.

- (a) <u>Military Leave</u>, pursuant to Section 243 of the Military Law, shall be deemed actual service.
- (b) Other Leaves Without Pay over three months shall constitute an interruption of continuous service for computing yearly increments.
- (c) <u>FMLA</u>. Employees shall be entitled to use FMLA according to provisions of the law.

ARTICLE 26 - JOB POSTINGS

1. Whenever an opportunity for promotion, provisional appointment or job opening occurs in other than a temporary situation in any existing job classification, or as the result of the development or establishment of a new job classification, a notice of the opening shall be posted

on all bulletin boards stating the job classification, rate of pay and the nature of the job requirements in order to qualify. The posting shall be for a period of not less than ten (10) workdays. The CSEA President shall receive a copy of all such postings.

- 2. During this period, employees who wish to apply for the open position, including employees on layoff, may do so. Bids shall be submitted on the appropriate "Job Bid Application" form to the Department Head in the department in which the vacant position exists. Employees should also submit copies of the completed bid form to the CSEA President and the Town's Director of Human Resources.
- 3. Whenever the Town announces a vacancy in a non-competitive position, employees wishing to be considered for the appointment who meet the posting qualifications and legitimate operating needs of the department shall be allowed to file an application in accordance with this Article. Appointments to higher salaried vacant positions in the non-competitive class shall be made on the basis of qualifications, requisite skills, training, education, experience and job performance (if applicable) as determined by the Department Head. In the event two or more qualified Bargaining Unit members are equally qualified as determined by the Department Head, the employee with greater seniority shall be appointed.

ARTICLE 27 – SENIORITY

Seniority means the length of an employee's continuous service with the Town of Amherst from the date of his last hire on a full-time basis for Non-competitive and Labor classes. Seniority for Competitive class positions means the length of an employee's continuous service with the Town of Amherst in the classified service from the first permanent appointment. Once per year, the employer shall post on all bulletin boards a seniority list showing the continuous service for each employee. A copy of the seniority list shall be furnished to the local union when it is posted. The seniority list will show the names, job titles and the date of hire of all employees in the unit entitled to seniority. An employee's continuous service record shall be broken by voluntary resignation, discharge for just cause and retirement. However, if an employee is rehired to work in

any capacity within one year, the break in continuous service shall be removed from his record.

ARTICLE 28 – LAYOFF

- The employer shall forward a list of those employees being laid off to the Unit President and the CSEA Labor Relations Specialist on the same date that the notices are issued to employees.
- 2. Employees to be laid off will have at least fourteen (14) calendar days' notice of layoff.
- 3. When a permanent employee in the Competitive class is to be laid off, Section 80 and other pertinent sections of the Civil Service Law will be invoked and will govern the layoff procedure of such employee.
- 4. When any other employee in the Non-competitive or Labor Class is to be laid off due to a reduction in the work force, he shall be permitted to exercise his seniority right to bump or replace an employee with less seniority. Such employee may, if he so desires, bump an employee in an equal or lower job classification provided the bumping employee has greater seniority than the employee whom he bumps and the necessary qualifications.
- 5. Layoff in lieu of bump. In the event of a layoff, the employee may not wish to bump into a job held by a junior employee in which event he will be entitled to be processed as a layoff and placed on the preferred eligible list or on the recall list.

ARTICLE 29 – RECALL

When the work force is increased after a layoff, employees will be recalled according to seniority. Notice of recall shall be sent to the employee at his last known address by registered or certified mail. If an employee fails to respond within seven (7) days within the date of mailing of the notice of recall, he shall be considered a quit. Recall rights for an employee shall expire after a period equal to his seniority unless the employee is deemed to be a quit. Written notice of expiration of recall rights shall be sent to the employee at his last known address by registered or certified mail.

Recall rights for competitive class employees will expire in accordance with the Classified Rules of Civil Service.

Bumping, recall or transfer referred to herein is restricted to the employees in the unit.

ARTICLE 30 – DISCIPLINE

In the event that the Town, pursuant to its rights under Article 2 hereof, shall discipline any employee who is not covered by the provisions of Section 75 of the New York State Civil Service Law by suspending or discharging the employee, the CSEA representative shall be immediately notified.

Such discipline may be made the subject of a grievance under the grievance procedure of this agreement, but only if such grievance is filed within five (5) days from the date of discipline and only on the basis that no cause existed for such discipline. If it is determined that no cause for discipline existed, the Town will reinstate such employee and pay his full salary or wages, without overtime, for the lost time.

The Town of Amherst endorses the principle of Progressive Discipline prior to suspension and/or discharge of an employee; however, this section does not cover the more serious offenses such as fighting, stealing, the drinking of intoxicating beverages on the job or on Town premises, possession or use of narcotics or drugs, gambling, or insubordination, in which cases Progressive Discipline will not be required.

However, any employee who is covered by Section 75 of the New York State Civil Service Law shall be disciplined only in the manner provided for in such law. Their right of appeal shall be as prescribed in Section 76 of the New York State Civil Service Law.

ARTICLE 31 - PERSONNEL FILE

For purposes of this Article, there shall be one official personnel file maintained for each employee, and such file shall be kept in the Town Human Resources Office. Employees

shall have the opportunity to review their personnel files upon five days' written notice. The Personnel file cannot be removed from its regular place of maintenance or storage and must be reviewed in the presence of the normal custodian of such files.

The Town shall notify employees when a derogatory document relating to job performance and/or conduct on the job is about to be placed into their personnel files. Employees shall be given an opportunity to acknowledge receipt of any such document prior to it being placed in their personal files. Employees who determine that there is an item in the file in which they seek to respond may file such response. With the exception of disciplinary actions and personnel transactions, any material in the personal file of an adverse nature shall be removed from the file after eighteen (18) months upon the employee's request.

ARTICLE 32 - SAVINGS CLAUSE

If a section, sub-section, sentence, clause, phrase or portion of this Agreement is for any reason held to be invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct and independent provision, and such holding will not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 33 - IMPASSE PROCEDURE

If the Town and the Bargaining Unit are unable to reach a agreement in their negotiations in future contracts as to any matter that may arise under Article 14 of the New York State Civil Service Law, the matter or matters in dispute shall be referred to the New York State Public Employees Relations Board pursuant to Section 209 of said Article for disposition.

ARTICLE 34 - SAFE PLACE TO WORK

1. <u>Safe Place to Work.</u> The Town and the Department Heads will make every effort to provide employees with a safe place to work.

- Mutual Respect. In order to maintain good order and morale, and to eliminate hostility within the Town of Amherst, departmental employees shall extend proper respect to all fellow employees while on duty.
- 3. The Town agrees to adhere to the Workplace Violence Act. Employees shall extend proper respect to all fellow employees while on duty.
- 4. <u>Pledge Against Discrimination and Coercion.</u> The provisions of this agreement shall be applied equally to all employees in the bargaining unit without discrimination as to age, sex, marital status, race, color, creed, physical or mental disability, national origin, political affiliation, political activity or <u>sexual orientation</u>. The Union shall share equally with the Town the responsibility for <u>applying</u> this provision of the agreement.

<u>ARTICLE 35 – RESIDENCY</u>

After twenty (20) years of continuous full-time service with the Town, employees may move their domiciles outside of the limits of the Town of Amherst. The distance of the new residence may not exceed a 30-mile radius (excluding Canada) of Amherst Town Hall, currently located at 5583 Main Street, Williamsville, NY.

ARTICLE 36 - GENDER CLAUSE

The provisions hereinbefore stated shall apply to all male and female employees.

ARTICLE 37 - VOLUNTARY SEPARATION INCENTIVE

The Town of Amherst shall offer a voluntary separation incentive with flexible parameters and a continuing health insurance option to CSEA employees during calendar years 2024, 2026, and 2028 with ample prior notice. The package offered in a voluntary separation incentive shall be a consistent package for all targeted employees and not vary from any contractual benefits if any are involved, and shall be finalized each offering year by a MOA between the parties.

ARTICLE 38 - FLEXIBLE HIRING PROCEDURE

The Town may use some discretion in placing new and promoted employees on the salary schedules pursuant to the following Flexible Hiring Procedure:

- 1. This provision applies to employees in the same job title as the new hire.
- 2. Any employee in the same job title with three (3) or more years of service can be no less than three (3) steps from the new hire.
- Any employee with more than three (3) years of service who is within three (3) steps from new hire will move up one (1) step automatically regardless of any decision made in Paragraph 4 of this Procedure.
- 4. Any employee in the same title can petition the Review Board for equal pay to the new hire based on experience, qualifications, etc. Upon the filing of such petitions, the current employee's credentials will be reviewed by a Review Board, consisting of the Director of Human Resources, the Town Board Liaison to Human Resources, two (2) Union Reps and the Department Head where the employee is assigned.
- 5. Approval or disapproval of the employee's petition will be determined by a majority vote of the Review Board.
- 6. Employees hired under this provision are only eligible for this flexible salary placement once during their career with the Town.
- 7. If a new title is introduced, any current employee qualified for the new title can petition as in Paragraph 4 above.
- 8. Employees hired under this article shall follow Town of Amherst § 45-3 "Employees to be Town Residents" residency requirements, and current provisional rules.

ARTICLE 39 - EFFECTIVE DATE

1. Effective Date. The effective date of this Agreement shall be January I, 2024, and the Agreement shall continue in full force and effect for a period of five years thereafter through December 31, 2028, unless extended or modified by mutual agreement of the parties. Notice of intent to change or amend the provisions of this Agreement shall be served in writing by the party desiring such change or amendment to the other party 180 days prior to said expiration date.

Shall neither party to this Agreement send a notice of intent to change or amend this Agreement as herein provided, then this Agreement shall be considered to have been automatically renewed for another year.

2. <u>Changes</u>. Should either party to this Agreement wish to initiate collective bargaining discussions, they shall mail in writing to the other party of this Agreement, notification not less than 180 days before the termination date of this Agreement or the termination date of the annual renewal that they wish to commence negotiations.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the part	ties have set their hands and seals this $\frac{2}{2}$
day of,2025,	
CIVIL SERVICE EMPLOYEES ASSOCIATION, INC., LOCAL 1000, AFSCME, AFL-CIO, TOWN OF AMHER UNIT 6768 OF LOCAL 815	TOWN OF AMHERST
By:	Brian Kulpa, Town Supervisor
By: Shaun Szejnar, CSEA LRs	By: Robert McCarthy, Director of HR

2024 Salary Schedule – Schedule A

	salary		1834	1834	1834	1834	1834	1834	1834	1834	1834	1834
	hourly		2096	2096	2096	2096	2096	2096	2096	2096	2096	2096
GRADE	CLASS TITLE		STEP A	STEP B	STEP C	STEP D	STEP E	STEP F	STEP G	STEP H	STEP I	STEP J
1	File Clerk		28,488	30,464	32,442	34,418	35,965	37,495	38,244	39,381	40,169	40,972
	Receptionist	S	(15.533)	(16.611)	(17.689)	(18.767)	(19.61)	(20.444)		(21.473)	(21.903)	(22.34)
2	Clerk		29,058	31,074	33,090	35,107	36,684	38,245	39,009	40,169	40,973	41,792
	Clerk Typist	S	(15.844)	(16.943)	(18.043)	(19.142)	(20.002)	(20.853)		(21.903)	(22.341)	(22.787)
2				` '				` '	` '			
3	Clerk Stenographer Assessment Clerk	S	34,167 (18.63)	35,066 (19.12)	35,965 (19.61)	37,495 (20.444)	39,027 (21.279)	40,701 (22.192)	41,515 (22.636)	42,652 (23.256)	43,505 (23.721)	44,375 (24.196)
		3				, ,		` ′	-			
4	Jr. Systems Software Specialist		35,621	36,558	37,495	39,027	40,701	42,499	-	44,485		46,282
	Records Inventory Clerk	S	(19.422)	(19.933)	(20.444)	(21.279)	(22.192)	(23.173)	. ,	(24.256)	(24.741)	(25.236)
	Laboratory Assistant Recreation Assistant	Н	(16.995)	(17.442)	(17.889)	(18.62)	(19.418)	(20.276)	(20.681)	(21.224)	(21.648)	(22.081)
5	Cook		36,295		39,027	40,701	42,499	44,406		46,431	47,360	48,308
	Account Clerk	S	(19.79)	(20.535)	(21.279)	(22.192)	(23.173)	(24.212)	(24.697)	(25.317)	(25.823)	(26.34)
	Account Clerk Typist Senior Clerk											
	Senior Clerk Typist											
6	Engineer Assistant	-	37,852		40,701	42,499		46,326		48,391	49,358	50,345
	Senior Account Clerk	S	(20.639)	(21.415)	(22.192)	(23.173)	(24.212)	(25.26)		(26.385)	(26.913)	(27.451)
	Senior Account Clerk Typist Refuse Control Clerk	Н	(18.059)	(18.738)	(19.418)	(20.276)	(21.186)	(22.102)	(22.545)	(23.087)	(23.549)	(24.02)
	Senior Clerk Stenographer											
	WWTP Process Controller (40 hours)											
	Senior Records Inventory Clerk											
	Police Complaint Writer (40 hours)											
7			20.074	40 500	40,400	44.400	40,000	40.000	40 227	FO 4C4	E4 470	F2 F02
7	Principal Clerk Typist	0	38,674		42,499	44,406				50,464		52,502
	Principal Tax Clerk Recreation Leader (Sr. Citizens)	S	(21.087) (18.451)	(22.13) (19.363)	(23.173) (20.276)	(24.212) (21.186)	(25.26) (22.102)	(26.369) (23.072)	, ,	(27.516) (24.076)	(28.066) (24.557)	(28.627) (25.049)
	Secretarial Stenographer	П	(10.451)	(19.303)	(20.270)	(21.100)	(22.102)	(23.072)	(23.334)	(24.070)	(24.557)	(23.049)
	Supervising Tax Clerk											
	Program Leader (Youth)											
•	Administrative Assistant		40,400	40.400	44.400	40,000	40.200	E0 E40	E4 EE4	F2 C02	F0 740	E4 004
8	Director of Volunteers	S	40,409 (22.034)	42,408 (23.123)	44,406 (24.212)	46,326 (25.26)	48,360 (26.369)	50,543 (27.559)		52,692 (28.73)	53,746 (29.305)	54,821 (29.891)
	Junior Planner	H	(19.279)	(20.233)	(21.186)	(22.102)	(23.072)	(24.114)	` '	(25.139)	(25.642)	(26.155)
	Computer Support Assistant	- ''	(10.210)	(20.200)	(21.100)	(22.102)	(20.012)	(2-1.11-1)	(24.001)	(20.100)	(20.012)	(20.100)
	Junior Accountant											
	Principal Account Clerk Typist											
	Food Service Manager											
	Community Center Manager											
	Community Development Assistant											
	Building & Zoning Clerk											
	Case Manager (Sr. Citizens)											
	Web Page Master											
9	Junior Planning Draftsworker		41,693	44,010	46,326	48,360	50,543	52,850	53,906	55,043	56,144	57,267
	Program Coordinator (Sr. Services)	S	(22.734)	(23.997)	(25.26)	(26.369)	(27.559)	(28.817)	(29.393)	(30.013)	(30.613)	(31.225)
	Social Caseworker (Sr. Citizens)	Н	(19.892)	(20.997)	(22.102)	(23.072)	(24.114)	(25.215)	(25.719)	(26.261)	(26.786)	(27.322)
	Youth Service Program Coordinator											
	Laboratory Technician											
	(Environmental Chemistry) (40 hours)											
	Public Relations Coordinator											
	Recreation Supervisor											
10	Computer Support Technician		43,524		48,360	50,543				57,531	58,681	59,855
	Paralegal	S	(23.732)	(25.05)	(26.369)	(27.559)	(28.817)	(30.146)		(31.369)	(31.996)	(32.636)
	Recreational Therapist	Н	(20.765)	(21.919)	(23.072)	(24.114)	(25.215)	(26.378)	(26.905)	(27.448)	(27.997)	(28.557)
	Youth Service Project Coordinator											

	Property Appraisal Technician stant Accountant	S	44,983 (24.527)	47,764 (26.044)	50,543 (27.559)	52,850 (28.817)	55,055 (30.019)	57,713 (31.468)	58,867 (32.097)	60,004 (32.718)	61,204 (33.372)	62,427
	Code Enforcement Officer		47,036	49,943	52,850	55,288	57,713	60,391	61,598	62,736	63.990	65,26
	stant Electrical Inspector	S	(25.647)	(27.232)	(28.817)	(30.146)	(31.468)	(32.928)	(33.587)	(34.207)	(34.891)	(35.589
	stant Fire Inspector	Н	(22.441)	(23.828)	(25.215)	(26.378)	(27.535)	(28.812)	(29.389)	(29.931)	(30.53)	(31.14
Assis	stant Electronics Tech WWF											
	stant Planner											
	stant Plumber											
	stant Plumbing Inspector											
	r Engineer -of-Way Agent											
	or Laboratory Technician											
	ronmental Chemistry)											
Buye	r											
Proje	ct Coordinator (Elderly Services)											
	s on Wheels Coordinator		49,206	52,247	55,288	57,713	60,391	63,100	64,362	65,499	66,809	68,14
	Analyst	S	(26.83) (23.476)	(28.488)	(30.146)	(31.468)	(32.928)	(34.405)	(35.094)	(35.714)	(36.428)	(37.157
	ning Draftsworker se Control Officer (40 Hours)	Н	(23.476)	(24.927)	(26.378)	(27.535)	(28.812)	(30.105)	(30.707)	(31.25)	(31.875)	(32.512
	or Recreation Supervisor											
	Center Director											
	or Youth Service Program Coordinator											
	or Program Coordinator (Sr. Citizens)											
	c Safety Dispatcher (40 hours)											
	or Engineer Assistant											
	ronics Technician - WWF	9	51,364 (28.007)	54,538 (29.737)	57,713 (31.468)	60,391 (32.928)	63,088 (34.399)	66,028 (36.002)	67,348 (36.722)	68,486 (37.342)	69,855 (38.089)	71,25 (38.851
Planr	rgency Services & Safety Coordinator	S H	(24.506)	(26.02)	(27.535)	(28.812)	(30.099)	(31.502)	(30.722)	(32.674)	(33.328)	(33.994
Plum		- ''	(2 1.000)	(20.02)	(27.000)	(20.0.2)	(00.000)	(01.002)	(02.102)	(02.07.1)	(00.020)	(00.00
	Property Appraiser											
	ork Coordinator											
	untant											
	r Municipal Engineer											
	stant WWTP Chemist		53,748	57,069	60,391	63,088	66,028	69,097	70,479	71,616	73,048	74,50
	Enforcement Officer	S	(29.306)	(31.117)	(32.928)	(34.399)	(36.002)	(37.676)	(38.429)	(39.049)	(39.83)	(40.627
	rical Inspector	Н	(25.643)	(27.227)	(28.812)	(30.099)	(31.502)	(32.966)	(33.626)	(34.168)	(34.851)	(35.548
	nspector rician											
	nation Technology Engineer											
	bing Inspector											
	or Refuse Control Officer (40 hours)											
	ublic Safety Dispatcher											
	nical Support Services Specialist											
	r Sanitary Engineer	_	56,149	59,619	63,088	66,028	69,097	72,306	73,752	74,889	76,387	77,91
	scape Architect ipal Engineer Assistant	S H	(30.615) (26.789)	(32.507) (28.444)	(34.399)	(36.002)	(37.676)	(39.425)	(40.214) (35.187)	(40.834) (35.73)	(41.651) (36.444)	(42.483
	Enforcement & Planning Officer	- ''	(20.703)	(20.444)	(00.000)	(01.002)	(02.000)	(04.401)	(55.167)	(55.75)	(50.444)	(07.170
	ram Supervisor Youth/Rec.											
Senio	or Planner											
	or Real Property Appraiser											
	Safety Program Coordinator											
	ewater Pretreatment Coordinator											
	or Planning Draftsworker											
	nation Systems Analyst											
	Developer											
	oll Processing Manager											
	dinator Federal and State Aid											
	ode Enforcement Officer		58,105	62,066	66,028	69,097	72,306	75,629	77,141	78,278	79,844	81,44
	or Electrical Inspector	S	(31.682)	(33.842)	(36.002)	(37.676)	(39.425)	(41.237)	(42.062)	(42.682)	(43.536)	(44.406
	or Fire Inspector or Plumbing Inspector	Н	(27.722)	(29.612)	(31.502)	(32.966)	(34.497)	(36.082)	(36.804)	(37.347)	(38.094)	(38.855
			00.000	04.054	00.007	70.000	75.000	70.000	00.707	04.004	00.500	05.00
	ciate Planner or Landscape Architect	S	60,806 (33.155)	64,951 (35.415)	69,097 (37.676)	72,306 (39.425)	75,629 (41.237)	79,203 (43.186)	80,787 (44.05)	81,924 (44.67)	83,563 (45.563)	85,23 (46.475
	or Electrician	H	(29.01)	(30.988)	(32.966)	(34.497)	(36.082)	(37.788)	(38.543)	(39.086)	(39.868)	(40.665
	or Plumber	••	(==:0.)	((- = : = 50)	, ,	((,	, ,	()	(. 5.000
	or GIS Analyst											
	eral Crew Chief (40 hours)											
	WWTP Operator											
	urce Coordinator											
	oct Manager		00.5==	07.0=	70.000	75.000	70.000	00.5:=	04 ===	05 = : -	07.455	
	TP Maintenance Supervisor	_	63,628	67,967	72,306	75,629	79,203	82,917	84,575	85,712	87,426	89,17
Supe	rvising Code Enforcement Officer	S H	(34.694) (30.357)	(37.059) (32.427)	(39.425) (34.497)	(41.237) (36.082)	(43.186) (37.788)	(45.211)	(46.115) (40.351)	(46.735) (40.893)	(47.67) (41.711)	(48.623
20 Elect	rician Crew Chief		66,553	71,091	75,629	79,203	82,917	86,759	88,494	89,631	91,424	93,25
		S H	(36.289)	(38.763)	(41.237) (36.082)	(43.186) (37.788)	(45.211)	(47.306) (41.393)	(48.252) (42.22)	(48.872) (42.763)	(49.849) (43.618)	(50.846
04 5 :	in al Diaman											
21 Princ	ipal Planner	S	67,884 (37.014)	72,512 (39.538)	77,141 (42.061)	80,787 (44.05)	84,575 (46.115)	88,493 (48.252)	90,264 (49.217)	91,424 (49.849)	93,252 (50.846)	95,11 (51.86 ²
						(44.05)	140.1151	140.7571	149.2771	(49.049)		(5),864

Salary Schedule A – 2% Increase over 2024 (retro)

	salaried employees (2024 total work hours)		1,834	1,834	1,834	1,834	1,834	1,834	1,834	1,834	1,834	1,834
	hourly employees (2024 total work hours)		2,096	2,096	2,096	2,096	2,096	2,096	2,096	2,096	2,096	2,096
GRADE	CLASS TITLE		STEP A	STEP B	STEP C	STEP D	STEP E	STEP F	STEP G	STEP H	STEP I	STEP J
1	File Clerk		29,058	31,074	33,091	35,107	36,684	38,245	39,009	40,169	40,973	41,792
	Receptionist	S	(15.844)	(16.943)	(18.043)	(19.142)	(20.002)	(20.853)	(21.27)	(21.902)	(22.341)	(22.787
2	Clerk		29,639	31,695	33,752	35,809	37,418	39,010	39,789	40,973	41,793	42,628
	Clerk Typist	S	(16.161)	(17.282)	(18.404)	(19.525)	(20.402)	(21.27)	(21.695)	(22.341)	(22.788)	(23.243)
3	Clerk Stenographer		34,850		36,684	38,245	39,807	41,515			44,375	45,262
3	Assessment Clerk	S	(19.002)	(19.502)	(20.002)	(20.853)	(21.705)	(22.636)	(23.089)	(23.721)	(24.196)	(24.68)
4	Jr. Systems Software Specialist	-	36,333			39,807	41,515	43,349			46,282	47,208
	Records Inventory Clerk Laboratory Assistant	S H	(19.811) (17.334)	(20.332) (17.79)	(20.853) (18.246)	(21.705) (18.992)	(22.636) (19.807)	(23.636) (20.682)	(24.109) (21.095)	(24.741) (21.648)	(25.236) (22.081)	(25.74)
	Recreation Assistant	11	(17.554)	(17.73)	(10.240)	(10.332)	(13.007)	(20.002)	(21.033)	(21.040)	(22.001)	(22.020)
5	Cook	•	37,021	38,414		41,515		45,294		47,360	48,307	49,274
	Account Clerk	S	(20.186)	(20.945)	(21.705)	(22.636)	(23.636)	(24.697)	(25.191)	(25.823)	(26.34)	(26.867)
	Account Clerk Typist Senior Clerk											
	Senior Clerk Typist											
			00.000	40.004	44.545	40.040	45.004	47.050	40.400	40.050	50.040	54.050
6	Engineer Assistant	_	38,609		41,515		45,294	47,253		49,358	50,346	51,352
	Senior Account Clerk	S H	(21.052)	(21.844)	(22.636)	(23.636)	(24.697)	(25.765) (22.544)	(26.28)	(26.913) (23.549)	(27.451) (24.02)	(28)
	Senior Account Clerk Typist Refuse Control Clerk	п	(18.42)	(19.113)	(19.807)	(20.682)	(21.61)	(22.544)	(22.995)	(23.549)	(24.02)	(24.5)
	Senior Clerk Stenographer											
	WWTP Process Controller (40 hours)											
	Senior Records Inventory Clerk											
	Police Complaint Writer (40 hours)											
7	Principal Clerk Typist		39,448	41,397	43,349	45,294	47,253	49,327	50,313	51,473	52,502	53,552
'	Principal Tax Clerk	S	(21.509)	(22.572)	(23.636)	(24.697)	(25.765)	(26.896)	(27.434)	(28.066)	(28.627)	(29.199)
	Recreation Leader (Sr. Citizens)	Н	(18.82)	(19.751)	(20.682)	(21.61)	(22.544)	(23.534)	(24.004)	(24.558)	(25.049)	(25.549)
	Secretarial Stenographer	•••	(10.00)	(,	(=====,	(=::-,	(==:-,	(=====,	(=,	(=)	(==:::)	(=====
	Supervising Tax Clerk											
	Program Leader (Youth)											
8	Administrative Assistant		41,218	43,256	45,294	47,253	49,327	51,554	52,585	53,745	54,821	55,917
	Director of Volunteers	S	(22.474)	(23.585)	(24.697)	(25.765)	(26.896)	(28.11)		(29.305)	(29.891)	(30.489)
	Junior Planner	Н	(19.665)	(20.637)	(21.61)	(22.544)	(23.534)	(24.596)	(25.088)	(25.642)	(26.155)	(26.678)
	Assistant Food Service Manager											
	Computer Support Assistant											
	Junior Accountant											
	Principal Account Clerk Typist											
	Community Center Manager											
	Community Development Assistant											
	Building & Zoning Clerk											
	Case Manager (Sr. Citizens) Web Page Master											
9	Junior Planning Draftsworker		42,527	44,890	-		51,554	53,907			57,267	58,412
	Program Coordinator (Sr. Services)	S	(23.188)	(24.477)	(25.765)	(26.896)	(28.11)	(29.393)		(30.613)	(31.225)	(31.85)
	Social Caseworker (Sr. Citizens)	Н	(20.29)	(21.417)	(22.544)	(23.534)	(24.596)	(25.719)	(26.233)	(26.786)	(27.322)	(27.868)
	Community Development Specialist Youth Service Program Coordinator											
	Laboratory Technician											
	(Environmental Chemistry) (40 hours)											
	Public Relations Coordinator											
	Recreation Supervisor											
10	Computer Support Technician		44,395	46,861	49,327	51,554	53,907	56,394	57,521	58,681	59,855	61,052
10	Paralegal	S	(24.207)	(25.551)	(26.896)	(28.11)		(30.749)		(31.996)	(32.636)	(33.289)
	Recreational Therapist	Н	(21.181)	(22.357)	(23.534)	(24.596)	(25.719)	(26.905)	(27.443)	(27.997)	(28.557)	(29.128)
	Youth Service Project Coordinator		(=)	(==:001)	(==::001)	,=	,)	(==:000)	(=: / 1.3)	,,	,,	(=31.20)

11	Real Property Appraisal Technician Assistant Accountant	S	45,883 (25.018)	48,719 (26.564)	51,554 (28.11)	53,907 (29.393)	56,156 (30.619)	58,867 (32.097)	60,044 (32.739)	61,204 (33.372)	62,428 (34.039)	63,676 (34.72)
12	Asst. Code Enforcement Officer		47,977	50,942	53,907	56,394	58,867	61,599	62,830	63,990	65,270	66,575
12	Assistant Electrical Inspector	S	(26.16)	(27.776)	(29.393)	(30.749)	(32.097)	(33.587)	(34.259)	(34.891)	(35.589)	(36.3)
	Assistant Fire Inspector	Н	(22.89)	(24.304)	(25.719)	(26.905)	(28.085)	(29.389)	(29.976)	(30.53)	(31.14)	(31.763)
	Assistant Electronics Tech WWF											
	Assistant Planner Assistant Plumber											
	Assistant Plumbing Inspector											
	Food Service Manager											
	Junior Engineer Right-of-Way Agent											
	Senior Laboratory Technician											
	(Environmental Chemistry)											
	Buyer											
	Project Coordinator (Elderly Services)											
13	Meals on Wheels Coordinator GIS Analyst	S	50,190 (27.366)	53,292 (29.058)	56,394 (30.749)	58,867 (32.097)	61,599 (33.587)	64,362 (35.094)	65,649 (35.796)	66,809 (36.428)	68,145 (37.157)	69,508 (37.9)
	Planning Draftsworker	H	(23.946)	(25.426)	(26.905)	(28.085)	(29.389)	(30.707)	(31.321)	(31.875)	(32.512)	(33.162)
	Refuse Control Officer (40 Hours)											
	Senior Recreation Supervisor											
	Youth Center Director Senior Youth Service Program Coordinator											
	Senior Program Coordinator (Sr. Citizens)											
	Public Safety Dispatcher (40 hours)											
	Senior Engineer Assistant											
14	Electronics Technician - WWF		52,392	55,629	58,867	61,599	64,350	67,349	68,695	69,855	71,252	72,678
	Emergency Services & Safety Coordinator Planner	S H	(28.567) (24.996)	(30.332) (26.541)	(32.097)	(33.587) (29.389)	(35.087)	(36.722)	(37.457)	(38.089)	(38.851)	(39.628)
	Plumber	- ''	(24.990)	(20.541)	(20.003)	(29.309)	(30.701)	(32.132)	(32.774)	(33.320)	(33.334)	(34.074)
	Real Property Appraiser											
	Network Coordinator											
	Building Maintenance Mechanic-HVAC Accountant											
	Junior Municipal Engineer											
15	Assistant WWTP Chemist		54,823	58,210	61,599	64,350	67,349	70,479	71,889	73,049	74,509	76,000
	Code Enforcement Officer	S	(29.893)	(31.739)	(33.587)	(35.087)	(36.722)	(38.429)	(39.198)	(39.83)	(40.627)	(41.439)
	Electrical Inspector	Н	(26.156)	(27.772)	(29.389)	(30.701)	(32.132)	(33.626)	(34.298)	(34.851)	(35.548)	(36.259)
	Community Liaison											
	Fire Inspector Electrician											
	Information Technology Engineer											
	Plumbing Inspector											
	Senior Refuse Control Officer (40 hours)											
	Sr. Public Safety Dispatcher Technical Support Services Specialist											
16	Junior Sanitary Engineer		57,272	60,811	64,350	67,349	70,479	73,752	75,227	76,387	77,915	79,473
	Landscape Architect	S	(31.228)	(33.158)	(35.087)	(36.722)	(38.429)	(40.214)	(41.018)	(41.651)	(42.484)	(43.333)
	Principal Engineer Assistant	Н	(27.324)	(29.013)	(30.701)	(32.132)	(33.626)	(35.187)	(35.891)	(36.444)	(37.173)	(37.916)
	Code Enforcement & Planning Officer Program Supervisor Youth/Rec.											
	Senior Planner											
	Senior Real Property Appraiser											
	Traffic Safety Program Coordinator											
	Wastewater Pretreatment Coordinator Supervising Accountant											
	Senior Planning Draftsworker											
	Information Systems Analyst											
	Web Developer											
	Payroll Processing Manager Coordinator Federal and State Aid											
17	Sr. Code Enforcement Officer		59,267	63,307	67,349	70.470	73,752	77,141	78,684	70.944	81.441	83.070
17	Senior Electrical Inspector	S	(32.316)	(34.519)	(36.722)	70,479 (38.429)	(40.214)	(42.062)	(42.903)	79,844 (43.535)	(44.406)	(45.294)
	Senior Fire Inspector	Н	(28.276)	(30.204)	(32.132)	(33.626)	(35.187)	(36.804)	(37.54)	(38.093)	(38.856)	(39.633)
	Senior Plumbing Inspector											
18	Associate Planner		62,022	66,250	70,479	73,752	77,141	80,787	82,403	83,563	85,234	86,939
	Senior Landscape Architect	S	(33.818)	(36.123)	(38.429)	(40.214)	(42.062)	(44.05)	(44.931)	(45.563)	(46.475)	(47.404)
	Senior Electrician Senior Plumber	Н	(29.591)	(31.608)	(33.626)	(35.187)	(36.804)	(38.543)	(39.314)	(39.868)	(40.665)	(41.479)
	Senior GIS Analyst											
	General Crew Chief (40 hours)											
	Chief WWTP Operator											
	Resource Coordinator Network Manager											
	Resource Coordinator											
	Project Manager											
19	WWTP Maintenance Supervisor		64,901	69,326	73,752	77,141	80,787	84,575	86,267	87,427	89,175	90,959
	Supervising Code Enforcement Officer	S	(35.388)	(37.801)	(40.214)	(42.062)	(44.05)	(46.115)	(47.037)	(47.67)	(48.623)	(49.596)
		Н	(30.964)	(33.076)	(35.187)	(36.804)	(38.543)	(40.351)	(41.158)	(41.711)	(42.545)	(43.396)
20	Electrician Crew Chief		67,884	72,513	77,141	80,787	84,575	88,494	90,264	91,424	93,252	95,117
	Supervising Maintenance Mechanic-HVAC	S H	(37.014) (32.388)	(39.538) (34.596)	(42.062) (36.804)	(44.05) (38.543)	(46.115) (40.351)	(48.252) (42.22)	(49.217) (43.065)	(49.849) (43.618)	(50.846) (44.491)	(51.863) (45.38)
21	Principal Planner	•	69,242	73,963	78,683	82,403	86,267	90,263	92,070	93,252	95,117	97,020
		S	(37.754)	(40.329)	(42.903)	(44.93)	(47.038)	(49.217)	(50.202)	(50.846)	(51.863)	(52.901)
		Н	(33.035)	(35.287)	(37.54)	(39.314)	(41.158)	(43.065)	(43.926)	(44.491)	(45.38)	(46.288)

2025 Salary Schedule A – 3% Increase over 2024 retro

	salaried employees (2025 total work hours)		1,827	1,827	1,827	1,827	1,827	1,827	1,827	1,827	1,827	1,827
	hourly employees (2025 total work hours)		2,088	2,088	2,088	2,088	2,088	2,088	2,088	2,088	2,088	2,088
GRADE	CLASS TITLE		STEP A	STEP B	STEP C	STEP D	STEP E	STEP F	STEP G	STEP H	STEP I	STEP J
1	File Clerk		29,929	32,006	34,084	36,160	37,785	39,392	40,179	41,374	42,202	43,046
-	Receptionist	S	(16.382)	(17.518)	(18.655)	(19.792)	(20.681)	(21.561)	(21.992)		(23.099)	(23.561
2		-					20 540		40.002		12.016	
2	Clark	S	30,528 (16.710)	32,646 (17.869)	34,765	36,883 (20.188)	38,540 (21.095)	40,180 (21.993)	40,983	42,202 (23.099)	43,046	43,907
	Clerk Typist	3			(19.028)				(22.432)		(23.561)	(24.032
3	Assessment Clerk		35,896	36,840	37,785	39,392	41,001	42,760	43,615	44,810	45,706	46,620
	Clerk Stenographer	S	(19.648)	(20.164)	(20.681)	(21.561)	(22.442)	(23.405)	(23.873)	(24.527)	(25.017)	(25.517
4	Junior Systems Software Specialist		37,423	38,407	39,392	41,001	42,760	44,649	45,541	46,736	47,671	48,624
	Laboratory Assistant	S	(20.483)	(21.022)	(21.561)	(22.442)	(23.405)	(24.438)	(24.927)	(25.581)	(26.092)	(26.614
	Recreation Assistant	Н	(17.923)	(18.394)	(18.866)	(19.637)	(20.479)	(21.384)	(21.811)	(22.383)	(22.831)	(23.287
5	Account Clerk		38,131	39,566	41,001	42,760	44,649	46,653	47,586	48,781	49,757	50,752
<u> </u>	Account Clerk Typist	S	(20.871)	(21.656)	(22.442)	(23.405)	(24.438)	(25.535)	(26.046)	(26.700)	(27.234)	(27.779
	Senior Clerk		(/	(,	,	(,	(,	(,	(/	(,	,	, -
	Senior Clerk Typist											
			20.767	44.262	42.760	44.640	46.652	40.674	40.544	50.000	54.056	52.00
6	Engineer Assistant		39,767	41,263	42,760	44,649	46,653	48,671	49,644	50,839	51,856	52,893
	Police Complaint Writer (40 hours)	S	(21.766)	(22.585)	(23.405)	(24.438)	(25.535)	(26.640)	(27.173)	, ,	(28.383)	(28.951
	Records Inventory Clerk	Н	(19.046)	(19.762)	(20.479)	(21.384)	(22.343)	(23.310)	(23.776)	(24.348)	(24.835)	(25.332
	Refuse Control Clerk											
	Senior Account Clerk											
	Senior Account Clerk Typist											
	Senior Clerk Stenographer											
	WWTP Process Controller (40 hours)											
7	Cook		40,631	42,639	44,649	46,653	48,671	50,807	51,822	53,017	54,077	55,158
	Principal Clerk Typist	S	(22.239)	(23.338)	(24.438)	(25.535)	(26.640)	(27.809)	(28.365)	(29.019)	(29.599)	(30.191
	Principal Tax Clerk	Н	(19.459)	(20.421)	(21.384)	(22.343)	(23.310)	(24.333)	(24.819)	(25.391)	(25.899)	(26.417
	Secretarial Stenographer											
	Supervising Tax Clerk											
8	Administrative Assistant		42,454	44,553	46,653	48,671	50,807	53,101	54,163	55,358	56,465	57,594
	Building & Zoning Clerk	S	(23.237)	(24.386)	(25.535)	(26.640)	(27.809)	(29.065)	(29.646)		(30.906)	(31.524
	Case Manager (Senior Citizens)	Н	(20.332)	(21.338)	(22.343)	(23.310)	(24.333)	(25.431)	(25.940)	(26.512)	(27.043)	(27.584
	Community Center Manager		, ,									
	Community Development Assistant											
	Director of Volunteers											
	Principal Account Clerk Typist											
	Senior Records Inventory Clerk											
9	·		42.002	46 227	40.071	F0 007	F2 101	FF F24	FC C24	F7 020	E0.00E	60,164
9	Assistant Food Service Manager Computer Support Assistant	S	43,803 (23.975)	46,237 (25.308)	48,671 (26.640)	50,807 (27.809)	53,101 (29.065)	55,524 (30.391)	56,634 (30.998)	57,829 (31.652)	58,985 (32.285)	(32.931
		H	(20.978)	(22.144)	(23.310)	(24.333)	(25.431)	(26.592)	(27.123)	(27.696)	(28.250)	(28.814
	Junior Accountant	п	(20.976)	(22.144)	(23.310)	(24.333)	(23.431)	(20.392)	(27.123)	(27.090)	(28.230)	(20.014
	Program Leader (Youth)											
	Recreation Leader (Senior Citizens) Web Page Master											
10	Community Development Specialist		45,727	48,267	50,807	53,101	55,524	58,085	59,247	60,442	61,651	62,884
	Junior Planner	S	(25.028)	(26.419)		(29.065)	(30.391)	(31.793)	(32.428)		(33.744)	(34.419
	Junior Planning Draftsworker	Н	(21.900)	(23.116)	(24.333)	(25.431)	(26.592)	(27.819)	(28.375)	(28.947)	(29.526)	(30.117
	Laboratory Technician											
	- Environmental Chemistry (40 hours)											
	Paralegal											
	Program Coordinator (Senior Services)											
	Public Relations Coordinator											
	Recreation Supervisor											
	Recreational Therapist											
	Social Caseworker (Senior Citizens)											
	Youth Service Program Coordinator											
	Youth Service Project Coordinator											

	nputer Support Technician I Property Appraisal Technician	S	47,260 (25.867)	50,181 (27.466)	53,101 (29.065)	55,524 (30.391)	57,841 (31.659)	60,633 (33.187)	61,845 (33.851)	63,040 (34.505)	64,301 (35.195)	65,586 (35.898
	istant Accountant istant Electronics Technician (WWTF)	S	49,416 (27.048)	52,470 (28.719)	55,524 (30.391)	58,085 (31.793)	60,633 (33.187)	63,446 (34.727)	64,715 (35.422)	65,910 (36.076)	67,228 (36.797)	68,572 (37.533
Buy		Н	(23.667)	(25.129)	(26.592)	(27.819)	(29.039)	(30.386)	(30.994)	(31.566)	(32.197)	(32.841
	d Service Manager											
	ior Engineer											
	ject Coordinator (Elderly Services) ht-of-Way Agent											
	ior Laboratory Technician											
- Er	nvironmental Chemistry											
	istant Code Enforcement Officer		51,696	54,891	58,085	60,633	63,446	66,292	67,619	68,813	70,190	71,594
	istant Electrical Inspector istant Fire Inspector	S H	(28.295)	(30.044)	(31.793)	(33.187)	(34.727)	(36.285)	(37.011)	(37.665)	(38.418)	(39.186
	istant Planner		(24.755)	(20.203)	(27.023)	(23.033)	(50.500)	(52.7.15)	(52.501)	(52.557)	(55.610)	(51.200
	istant Plumber											
	istant Plumbing Inspector											
	Analyst als on Wheels Coordinator											
Pla	nning Draftsworker											
	use Control Officer (40 Hours)											
	ior Program Coordinator (Senior Citizens) ior Recreation Supervisor											
	ior Youth Service Program Coordinator											
You	th Center Director											
	lding Maintenance Mechanic (HVAC)		53,963	57,298	60,633	63,446	66,280	69,369	70,756	71,951	73,389	74,85
	ctronics Technician (WWTF)	S	(29.537) (25.845)	(31.362)	(33.187) (29.039)	(34.727)	(36.278)	(37.969)	(38.728)	(39.382)	(40.169) (35.148)	(40.973 (35.851
	I Property Appraiser	Н	(25.845)	(27.442)	(29.039)	(30.386)	(31.744)	(33.223)	(33.887)	(34.459)	(35.148)	(35.851
	istant WWTP Chemist		56,468	59,957	63,446	66,280	69,369	72,594	74,045	75,240	76,744	78,280
	nmunity Liaison	S	(30.907)	(32.817)	(34.727)	(36.278)	(37.969)	(39.734)	(40.528)	(41.182)	(42.006)	(42.846
	ormation Technology Engineer	Н	(27.044)	(28.715)	(30.386)	(31.744)	(33.223)	(34.767)	(35.462)	(36.035)	(36.755)	(37.490
	work Coordinator ior Engineer Assistant											
	ior Refuse Control Officer (40 hours)											
	ountant		58,990	62,635	66,280	69,369	72,594	75,964	77,484	78,679	80,252	81,85
	le Enforcement & Planning Officer	S	(32.288)	(34.283)	(36.278)	(37.969)	(39.734)	(41.579)	(42.410)	(43.064)	(43.926)	(44.804
	le Enforcement Officer	Н	(28.252)	(29.998)	(31.744)	(33.223)	(34.767)	(36.381)	(37.109)	(37.681)	(38.435)	(39.203
	ordinator Federal and State Aid ctrical Inspector											
	etrician											
	ergency Services & Safety Coordinator											
	Inspector											
	ormation Systems Analyst ior Municipal Engineer											
	ior Sanitary Engineer											
Plu	mber											
	mbing Inspector											
	gram Supervisor Youth / Recreation ior Planning Draftsworker											
	ior Real Property Appraiser											
	hnical Support Services Specialist											
	ffic Safety Program Coordinator											
	stewater Pretreatment Coordinator b Developer											
	dscape Architect		61,045	65,206	69,369	72,594	75,964	79,455	81,044	82,239	83,884	85,562
	ncipal Engineer Assistant	S	(33.413)	(35.690)	(37.969)	(39.734)	(41.579)	(43.490)	(44.359)	(45.013)	(45.914)	(46.832
Sen	ior Planner	Н	(29.236)	(31.229)	(33.223)	(34.767)	(36.381)	(38.053)	(38.814)	(39.387)	(40.175)	(40.978
	ef WWTP Operator		63,883	68,238	72,594	75,964	79,455	83,211	84,875	86,070	87,791	89,54
	rroll Processing Manager	S	(34.966)	(37.350)	(39.734)	(41.579)	(43.490)	(45.545)	(46.456)	(47.110)	(48.052)	(49.013
	ject Manager ource Coordinator	Н	(30.595)	(32.681)	(34.767)	(36.381)	(38.053)	(39.852)	(40.649)	(41.221)	(42.046)	(42.887
	ior Code Enforcement Officer											
	ior Electrical Inspector											
	ior Electrician ior Fire Inspector											
	ior GIS Analyst											
	ior Landscape Architect											
	ior Plumber											
	ior Plumbing Inspector pervising Accountant											
	ociate Planner		66,848	71,406	75,964	79,455	83,211	87,113	88,855	90,049	91,850	93,688
	neral Crew Chief (40 hours)	S	(36.589)	(39.084)	(41.579)	(43.490)	(45.545)	(47.681)	(48.634)	(49.288)	(50.274)	(51.279
	intenance Supervisor (WWTF)	Н	(32.015)	(34.198)	(36.381)	(38.053)	(39.852)	(41.721)	(42.555)	(43.127)	(43.989)	(44.870
	work Manager											
	ctrician Crew Chief		69,921	74,688	79,455	83,211	87,113	91,149	92,972	94,167	96,050	97,97
	ervising Code Enforcement Officer ervising Maintenance Mechanic (HVAC)	S H	(38.271)	(40.880) (35.770)	(43.490) (38.053)	(45.545) (39.852)	(47.681) (41.721)	(49.890) (43.654)	(50.888) (44.527)	(51.542) (45.099)	(52.572) (46.001)	(53.624 (46.921
	ncipal Planner		71,319	76,181	81,044	84,875	88,855	92,971	94,832	96,050	97,971	99,931
1111		S	(39.036)	(41.698)	(44.359)	(46.456)	(48.634)	(50.887)	(51.906)	(52.572)	(53.624)	(54.697
							(42.555)	(44.526)	(45.417)			(47.860

2026 Salary Schedule A - 3.75% Increase over 2025

	salaried employees (2026 total work hours)		1,827	1,827	1,827	1,827	1,827	1,827	1,827	1,827	1,827	1,827
	hourly employees (2026 total work hours)		2,088	2,088	2,088	2,088	2,088	2,088	2,088	2,088	2,088	2,088
GRADE	CLASS TITLE		STEP A	STEP B	STEP C	STEP D	STEP E	STEP F	STEP G	STEP H	STEP I	STEP J
1	File Clerk		31,052	33,206	35,362	37,516	39,202	40,869	41,686	42,926	43,785	44,660
-	Receptionist	S	(16.996)	(18.175)	(19.355)	(20.534)	(21.457)	(22.370)	(22.817)	(23.495)	(23.965)	(24.444)
2	Clerk		31,673	33,870	36,068	38,266	39,986	41,687	42,519	43,784	44,661	45,553
	Clerk Typist	S	(17.336)	(18.539)	(19.742)	(20.945)	(21.886)	(22.817)	(23.273)	(23.965)	(24.445)	(24.933)
3	Assessment Clerk		37,242	38,221	39,202	40,869	42,539	44,364	45,251	46,491	47,420	48,369
	Clerk Stenographer	S	(20.384)	(20.920)	(21.457)	(22.370)	(23.283)	(24.282)	(24.768)	(25.446)	(25.955)	(26.474)
4	Junior Systems Software Specialist		38,826	39,848	40,869	42,539	44,364	46,323	47,249	48,489	49,458	50,447
	Laboratory Assistant	S	(21.251)	(21.810)	(22.370)	(23.283)	(24.282)	(25.355)	(25.862)	(26.540)	(27.071)	(27.612)
	Recreation Assistant	Н	(18.595)	(19.084)	(19.573)	(20.373)	(21.247)	(22.185)	(22.629)	(23.223)	(23.687)	(24.161)
5	Account Clerk		39,561	41,050	42,539	44,364	46,323	48,402	49,370	50,610	51,623	52,655
	Account Clerk Typist	S	(21.654)	(22.469)	(23.283)	(24.282)	(25.355)	(26.493)	(27.023)	(27.701)	(28.255)	(28.821)
	Senior Clerk											
	Senior Clerk Typist											
6	Engineer Assistant		41,258	42,810	44,364	46,323	48,402	50,496	51,506	52,746	53,800	54,876
J	Police Complaint Writer (40 hours)	S	(22.583)	(23.432)	(24.282)	(25.355)	(26.493)	(27.639)	(28.192)	(28.870)	(29.447)	(30.036)
	Records Inventory Clerk	H	(19.760)	(20.503)	(21.247)	(22.185)	(23.181)	(24.184)	(24.668)	(25.261)	(25.767)	(26.282)
	Refuse Control Clerk		(2517 00)	(20.505)	(221217)	(22,100)	(25:202)	(220 .)	(2)	(23:201)	(23.707)	(20.202)
	Senior Account Clerk											
	Senior Account Clerk Typist											
	Senior Clerk Stenographer											
	WWTP Process Controller (40 hours)											
-	· · · · · · ·		42.455	44.220	46 222	40.403	FO 40C	F2 742	F2.766	FF 00F	FC 10F	F7 227
7	Cook		42,155 (23.073)	44,238 (24.214)	46,323	48,402	50,496	52,712 (28.852)	53,766	55,005	56,105	57,227 (31.323)
	Principal Clerk Typist Principal Tax Clerk	S H	(20.189)	(21.187)	(25.355)	(26.493)	(27.639)	(25.245)	(29.428)	(30.107)	(30.709)	
	Secretarial Stenographer	п	(20.189)	(21.187)	(22.185)	(23.181)	(24.184)	(25.245)	(25.750)	(20.344)	(26.870)	(27.407)
	Supervising Tax Clerk											
8	Administrative Assistant		44,046	46,224	48,402	50,496	52,712	55,092	56,194	57,434	58,583	59,754
	Building & Zoning Clerk	S	(24.108)	(25.301)	(26.493)	(27.639)	(28.852)	(30.154)	(30.758)	(31.436)	(32.065)	(32.706)
	Case Manager (Senior Citizens)	Н	(21.095)	(22.138)	(23.181)	(24.184)	(25.245)	(26.385)	(26.913)	(27.507)	(28.057)	(28.618)
	Community Center Manager											
	Community Development Assistant											
	Director of Volunteers											
	Principal Account Clerk Typist											
	Senior Records Inventory Clerk											
9	Assistant Food Service Manager		45,446	47,971	50,496	52,712	55,092	57,606	58,758	59,997	61,197	62,421
	Computer Support Assistant	S	(24.874)	(26.257)	(27.639)	(28.852)	(30.154)	(31.530)	(32.161)	(32.839)	(33.496)	(34.166)
	Junior Accountant	Н	(21.765)	(22.974)	(24.184)	(25.245)	(26.385)	(27.589)	(28.141)	(28.734)	(29.309)	(29.895)
	Program Leader (Youth)											
	Recreation Leader (Senior Citizens)											
	Web Page Master											
10	Community Development Specialist		47,441	50,077	52,712	55,092	57,606	60,264	61,469	62,708	63,963	65,242
	Junior Planner	S	(25.967)	(27.409)	(28.852)	(30.154)	(31.530)	(32.985)	(33.645)	(34.323)	(35.010)	(35.710)
	Junior Planning Draftsworker	Н	(22.721)	(23.983)	(25.245)	(26.385)	(27.589)	(28.862)	(29.439)	(30.033)	(30.633)	(31.246)
	Laboratory Technician											
	- Environmental Chemistry (40 hours) Paralegal											
	Program Coordinator (Senior Services)											
	Public Relations Coordinator											
	Recreation Supervisor											
	Recreational Therapist											
	Social Caseworker (Senior Citizens)											
	Youth Service Program Coordinator											
	Youth Service Project Coordinator											

	Computer Support Technician Real Property Appraisal Technician	S	49,032 (26.837)	52,063 (28.496)	55,092 (30.154)	57,606 (31.530)	60,010 (32.846)	62,906 (34.432)	64,165 (35.120)	65,404 (35.799)	66,712 (36.515)	68,046 (37.245
12	Assistant Accountant	<u> </u>	51,269	54,438	57,606	60,264	62,906	65,826	67,142	68,382	69,749	71,144
12	Assistant Accountant Assistant Electronics Technician (WWTF)	S	(28.062)	(29.796)	(31.530)	(32.985)	(34.432)	(36.029)	(36.750)	(37.428)	(38.177)	(38.940
	Buyer	Н	(24.554)	(26.072)	(27.589)	(28.862)	(30.128)	(31.526)	(32.156)	(32.750)	(33.405)	(34.073
	Food Service Manager											
	Junior Engineer Project Coordinator (Elderly Services)											
	Right-of-Way Agent											
	Senior Laboratory Technician											
	- Environmental Chemistry											
13	Assistant Code Enforcement Officer Assistant Electrical Inspector	S	53,634 (29.357)	56,949 (31.171)	60,264 (32.985)	62,906 (34.432)	65,826 (36.029)	68,778 (37.646)	70,154 (38.399)	71,394 (39.077)	72,822 (39.859)	74,27
	Assistant Fire Inspector	H	(25.687)	(27.274)	(28.862)	(30.128)	(31.526)	(32.940)	(33.599)	(34.192)	(34.876)	(35.574
	Assistant Planner											
	Assistant Plumber											
	Assistant Plumbing Inspector GIS Analyst											
	Meals on Wheels Coordinator											
	Planning Drafts worker											
	Refuse Control Officer (40 Hours) Senior Program Coordinator (Senior Citizens)											
	Senior Recreation Supervisor											
	Senior Youth Service Program Coordinator											
	Youth Center Director											
14	Building Maintenance Mechanic (HVAC)		55,987	59,447	62,906	65,826	68,766	71,970	73,409	74,649	76,142	77,66
	Electronics Technician (WWTF) Planner	S H	(30.644)	(32.538)	(34.432)	(36.029)	(37.639)	(39.393)	(40.180) (35.158)	(40.859) (35.751)	(41.676) (36.466)	(42.510
	Real Property Appraiser		, í	Ì		, í						·
15	Assistant WWTP Chemist		58,585	62,205	65,826	68,766	71,970	75,316	76,822	78,062	79,622	81,21
	Community Liaison	S	(32.066)	(34.048)	(36.029)	(37.639)	(39.393)	(41.224)	(42.048)	(42.727)	(43.581)	(44.45
	Information Technology Engineer Network Coordinator	Н	(28.058)	(29.792)	(31.526)	(32.934)	(34.469)	(36.071)	(36.792)	(37.386)	(38.133)	(38.89)
	Senior Engineer Assistant											
	Senior Refuse Control Officer (40 hours)											
16	Accountant		61,202	64,984	68,766	71,970	75,316	78,813	80,390	81,629	83,262	84,92
	Code Enforcement & Planning Officer	S	(33.499)	(35.569)	(37.639)	(39.393)	(41.224)	(43.138)	(44.001)	(44.679)	(45.573)	(46.484
	Code Enforcement Officer Coordinator Federal and State Aid	Н	(29.311)	(31.123)	(32.934)	(34.469)	(36.071)	(37.746)	(38.501)	(39.094)	(39.876)	(40.674
	Electrical Inspector											
	Electrician											
	Emergency Services & Safety Coordinator											
	Fire Inspector Information Systems Analyst											
	Junior Municipal Engineer											
	Junior Sanitary Engineer											
	Plumber Plumbing Inspector											
	Program Supervisor Youth / Recreation											
	Senior Planning Draftsworker											
	Senior Real Property Appraiser Technical Support Services Specialist											
	Traffic Safety Program Coordinator											
	Web Developer											
	Wastewater Pretreatment Coordinator											
17	Landscape Architect		63,334	67,652	71,970	75,316	78,813	82,435	84,084	85,323	87,030	
17	Landscape Architect Principal Engineer Assistant	S H	(34.666)	(37.029)	(39.393)	(41.224)	(43.138)	(45.120)	(46.023)	(46.701)	(47.636)	(48.588
	Landscape Architect Principal Engineer Assistant Senior Planner	S H	(34.666) (30.332)	(37.029) (32.400)	(39.393) (34.469)	(41.224) (36.071)	(43.138) (37.746)	(45.120) (39.480)	(46.023) (40.270)	(46.701) (40.864)	(47.636) (41.681)	(48.58) (42.51)
17	Landscape Architect Principal Engineer Assistant		(34.666)	(37.029)	(39.393)	(41.224)	(43.138)	(45.120)	(46.023)	(46.701)	(47.636)	(48.58) (42.51) 92,90
	Landscape Architect Principal Engineer Assistant Senior Planner Chief WWTP Operator Payroll Processing Manager Project Manager	Н	(34.666) (30.332) 66,278	(37.029) (32.400) 70,796	(39.393) (34.469) 75,316	(41.224) (36.071) 78,813	(43.138) (37.746) 82,435	(45.120) (39.480) 86,331	(46.023) (40.270) 88,058	(46.701) (40.864) 89,297	(47.636) (41.681) 91,084	(48.58 (42.51) 92,90 (50.85)
	Landscape Architect Principal Engineer Assistant Senior Planner Chief WWTP Operator Payroll Processing Manager Project Manager Resource Coordinator	H S	(34.666) (30.332) 66,278 (36.277)	(37.029) (32.400) 70,796 (38.750)	(39.393) (34.469) 75,316 (41.224)	(41.224) (36.071) 78,813 (43.138)	(43.138) (37.746) 82,435 (45.120)	(45.120) (39.480) 86,331 (47.253)	(46.023) (40.270) 88,058 (48.198)	(46.701) (40.864) 89,297 (48.876)	(47.636) (41.681) 91,084 (49.854)	(48.58 (42.51) 92,90 (50.85)
	Landscape Architect Principal Engineer Assistant Senior Planner Chief WWTP Operator Payroll Processing Manager Project Manager Resource Coordinator Senior Code Enforcement Officer	H S	(34.666) (30.332) 66,278 (36.277)	(37.029) (32.400) 70,796 (38.750)	(39.393) (34.469) 75,316 (41.224)	(41.224) (36.071) 78,813 (43.138)	(43.138) (37.746) 82,435 (45.120)	(45.120) (39.480) 86,331 (47.253)	(46.023) (40.270) 88,058 (48.198)	(46.701) (40.864) 89,297 (48.876)	(47.636) (41.681) 91,084 (49.854)	(48.58 (42.51) 92,90 (50.85)
	Landscape Architect Principal Engineer Assistant Senior Planner Chief WWTP Operator Payroll Processing Manager Project Manager Resource Coordinator	H S	(34.666) (30.332) 66,278 (36.277)	(37.029) (32.400) 70,796 (38.750)	(39.393) (34.469) 75,316 (41.224)	(41.224) (36.071) 78,813 (43.138)	(43.138) (37.746) 82,435 (45.120)	(45.120) (39.480) 86,331 (47.253)	(46.023) (40.270) 88,058 (48.198)	(46.701) (40.864) 89,297 (48.876)	(47.636) (41.681) 91,084 (49.854)	(48.58 (42.51) 92,90 (50.85)
	Landscape Architect Principal Engineer Assistant Senior Planner Chief WWTP Operator Payroll Processing Manager Project Manager Resource Coordinator Senior Code Enforcement Officer Senior Electrical Inspector Senior Electrician Senior Fire Inspector	H S	(34.666) (30.332) 66,278 (36.277)	(37.029) (32.400) 70,796 (38.750)	(39.393) (34.469) 75,316 (41.224)	(41.224) (36.071) 78,813 (43.138)	(43.138) (37.746) 82,435 (45.120)	(45.120) (39.480) 86,331 (47.253)	(46.023) (40.270) 88,058 (48.198)	(46.701) (40.864) 89,297 (48.876)	(47.636) (41.681) 91,084 (49.854)	(48.58 (42.51) 92,90 (50.85)
	Landscape Architect Principal Engineer Assistant Senior Planner Chief WWTP Operator Payroll Processing Manager Project Manager Resource Coordinator Senior Code Enforcement Officer Senior Electricial Inspector Senior Electrician Senior Fire Inspector Senior GIS Analyst	H S	(34.666) (30.332) 66,278 (36.277)	(37.029) (32.400) 70,796 (38.750)	(39.393) (34.469) 75,316 (41.224)	(41.224) (36.071) 78,813 (43.138)	(43.138) (37.746) 82,435 (45.120)	(45.120) (39.480) 86,331 (47.253)	(46.023) (40.270) 88,058 (48.198)	(46.701) (40.864) 89,297 (48.876)	(47.636) (41.681) 91,084 (49.854)	(48.58 (42.51) 92,90 (50.85)
	Landscape Architect Principal Engineer Assistant Senior Planner Chief WWTP Operator Payroll Processing Manager Project Manager Resource Coordinator Senior Code Enforcement Officer Senior Electricial Inspector Senior Electrician Senior Fire Inspector Senior GIS Analyst Senior Landscape Architect	H S	(34.666) (30.332) 66,278 (36.277)	(37.029) (32.400) 70,796 (38.750)	(39.393) (34.469) 75,316 (41.224)	(41.224) (36.071) 78,813 (43.138)	(43.138) (37.746) 82,435 (45.120)	(45.120) (39.480) 86,331 (47.253)	(46.023) (40.270) 88,058 (48.198)	(46.701) (40.864) 89,297 (48.876)	(47.636) (41.681) 91,084 (49.854)	(48.588 (42.515 92,90 (50.852
	Landscape Architect Principal Engineer Assistant Senior Planner Chief WWTP Operator Payroll Processing Manager Project Manager Resource Coordinator Senior Code Enforcement Officer Senior Electrical Inspector Senior Electrician Senior Fire Inspector Senior GIS Analyst Senior Landscape Architect Senior Plumber Senior Plumbing Inspector	H S	(34.666) (30.332) 66,278 (36.277)	(37.029) (32.400) 70,796 (38.750)	(39.393) (34.469) 75,316 (41.224)	(41.224) (36.071) 78,813 (43.138)	(43.138) (37.746) 82,435 (45.120)	(45.120) (39.480) 86,331 (47.253)	(46.023) (40.270) 88,058 (48.198)	(46.701) (40.864) 89,297 (48.876)	(47.636) (41.681) 91,084 (49.854)	(48.58 (42.51) 92,90 (50.85)
18	Landscape Architect Principal Engineer Assistant Senior Planner Chief WWTP Operator Payroll Processing Manager Project Manager Resource Coordinator Senior Code Enforcement Officer Senior Electrical Inspector Senior Electrician Senior Fire Inspector Senior GIS Analyst Senior Landscape Architect Senior Plumber Senior Plumbing Inspector Supervising Accountant	H S	(34.666) (30.332) 66,278 (36.277) (31.742)	(37.029) (32.400) 70,796 (38.750) (33.906)	(39.393) (34.469) 75,316 (41.224) (36.071)	(41.224) (36.071) 78,813 (43.138) (37.746)	(43.138) (37.746) 82,435 (45.120) (39.480)	(45.120) (39.480) 86,331 (47.253) (41.346)	(46.023) (40.270) 88,058 (48.198) (42.173)	(46.701) (40.864) 89,297 (48.876) (42.767)	(47.636) (41.681) 91,084 (49.854) (43.622)	(48.58) (42.51) 92,90 (50.85) (44.49)
	Landscape Architect Principal Engineer Assistant Senior Planner Chief WWTP Operator Payroll Processing Manager Project Manager Resource Coordinator Senior Code Enforcement Officer Senior Electricial Inspector Senior Electrician Senior Fire Inspector Senior GIS Analyst Senior Landscape Architect Senior Plumber Senior Plumbing Inspector Supervising Accountant Associate Planner	S H	(34.666) (30.332) 66,278 (36.277) (31.742)	(37.029) (32.400) 70,796 (38.750) (33.906)	(39.393) (34.469) 75,316 (41.224) (36.071)	(41.224) (36.071) 78,813 (43.138) (37.746)	(43.138) (37.746) 82,435 (45.120) (39.480)	(45.120) (39.480) 86,331 (47.253) (41.346)	(46.023) (40.270) 88,058 (48.198) (42.173)	(46.701) (40.864) 89,297 (48.876) (42.767)	(47.636) (41.681) 91,084 (49.854) (43.622)	(48.58) (42.51) 92,90 (50.85) (44.49)
18	Landscape Architect Principal Engineer Assistant Senior Planner Chief WWTP Operator Payroll Processing Manager Project Manager Resource Coordinator Senior Code Enforcement Officer Senior Electricial Inspector Senior Electrician Senior Fire Inspector Senior GIS Analyst Senior Landscape Architect Senior Plumber Senior Plumbing Inspector Supervising Accountant Associate Planner General Crew Chief (40 hours)	S H	(34.666) (30.332) 66,278 (36.277) (31.742) (31.742) 69,355 (37.961)	(37.029) (32.400) 70,796 (38.750) (33.906) 74,084 (40.549)	(39.393) (34.469) 75,316 (41.224) (36.071) 78,813 (43.138)	(41.224) (36.071) 78,813 (43.138) (37.746) 82,435 (45.120)	(43.138) (37.746) 82,435 (45.120) (39.480) 86,331 (47.253)	(45.120) (39.480) 86,331 (47.253) (41.346) 90,379 (49.469)	(46.023) (40.270) 88,058 (48.198) (42.173) 92,187 (50.458)	(46.701) (40.864) 89,297 (48.876) (42.767) 93,426 (51.136)	(47.636) (41.681) 91,084 (49.854) (43.622) 95,294 (52.159)	(48.58) (42.51) 92,90 (50.85) (44.49) 97,20 (53.20)
18	Landscape Architect Principal Engineer Assistant Senior Planner Chief WWTP Operator Payroll Processing Manager Project Manager Resource Coordinator Senior Code Enforcement Officer Senior Electricial Inspector Senior Electrician Senior Fire Inspector Senior GIS Analyst Senior Landscape Architect Senior Plumber Senior Plumbing Inspector Supervising Accountant Associate Planner	S H	(34.666) (30.332) 66,278 (36.277) (31.742)	(37.029) (32.400) 70,796 (38.750) (33.906)	(39.393) (34.469) 75,316 (41.224) (36.071)	(41.224) (36.071) 78,813 (43.138) (37.746)	(43.138) (37.746) 82,435 (45.120) (39.480)	(45.120) (39.480) 86,331 (47.253) (41.346)	(46.023) (40.270) 88,058 (48.198) (42.173)	(46.701) (40.864) 89,297 (48.876) (42.767)	(47.636) (41.681) 91,084 (49.854) (43.622)	(48.58) (42.51) 92,90 (50.85) (44.49) 97,20 (53.20)
18	Landscape Architect Principal Engineer Assistant Senior Planner Chief WWTP Operator Payroll Processing Manager Project Manager Resource Coordinator Senior Code Enforcement Officer Senior Electricial Inspector Senior Electrician Senior Fire Inspector Senior GIS Analyst Senior Landscape Architect Senior Plumber Senior Plumbing Inspector Supervising Accountant Associate Planner General Crew Chief (40 hours) Maintenance Supervisor (WWTF)	S H	(34.666) (30.332) 66,278 (36.277) (31.742) (31.742) 69,355 (37.961)	(37.029) (32.400) 70,796 (38.750) (33.906) 74,084 (40.549)	(39.393) (34.469) 75,316 (41.224) (36.071) 78,813 (43.138)	(41.224) (36.071) 78,813 (43.138) (37.746) 82,435 (45.120)	(43.138) (37.746) 82,435 (45.120) (39.480) 86,331 (47.253)	(45.120) (39.480) 86,331 (47.253) (41.346) 90,379 (49.469)	(46.023) (40.270) 88,058 (48.198) (42.173) 92,187 (50.458)	(46.701) (40.864) 89,297 (48.876) (42.767) 93,426 (51.136)	(47.636) (41.681) 91,084 (49.854) (43.622) 95,294 (52.159)	(48.58) (42.51) 92,90 (50.85) (44.49) 97,20 (53.20) (46.55)
18	Landscape Architect Principal Engineer Assistant Senior Planner Chief WWTP Operator Payroll Processing Manager Project Manager Resource Coordinator Senior Code Enforcement Officer Senior Electricial Inspector Senior Electrician Senior Fire Inspector Senior GIS Analyst Senior Landscape Architect Senior Plumber Senior Plumber Senior Plumbing Inspector Supervising Accountant Associate Planner General Crew Chief (40 hours) Maintenance Supervisor (WWTF) Network Manager Electrician Crew Chief Supervising Code Enforcement Officer	S H	(34.666) (30.332) 66,278 (36.277) (31.742) 69,355 (37.961) (33.216) 72,543 (39.706)	(37.029) (32.400) 70,796 (38.750) (33.906) 74,084 (40.549) (35.481) 77,489 (42.413)	78,813 (43,138) (37,746) (45,224) (36,071) 78,813 (43,138) (37,746)	(41.224) (36.071) 78,813 (43.138) (37.746) 82,435 (45.120) (39.480) 86,331 (47.253)	(43.138) (37.746) 82,435 (45.120) (39.480) 86,331 (47.253) (41.346) 90,379 (49.469)	90,379 (43.285) 94,567 (51.761)	92,187 (50.458) (44.151) 96,458 (52.796)	93,426 (51.136) (44.744) 97,698 (53.475)	91,084 (49.854) (43.622) 95,294 (52.159) (45.639) 99,652 (54.544)	97,20 (53.202) (50.652) (44.495)
19 20	Landscape Architect Principal Engineer Assistant Senior Planner Chief WWTP Operator Payroll Processing Manager Project Manager Resource Coordinator Senior Code Enforcement Officer Senior Electrical Inspector Senior Electrician Senior Fire Inspector Senior GIS Analyst Senior Landscape Architect Senior Plumber Senior Plumber Senior Plumbing Inspector Supervising Accountant Associate Planner General Crew Chief (40 hours) Maintenance Supervisor (WWTF) Network Manager Electrician Crew Chief	Н	(34.666) (30.332) 66,278 (36.277) (31.742) 69,355 (37.961) (33.216)	74,084 (40.549) (35.481) 77,489 (42.413) (37.112)	(39.393) (34.469) 75,316 (41.224) (36.071) 78,813 (43.138) (37.746)	(41.224) (36.071) 78,813 (43.138) (37.746) 82,435 (45.120) (39.480) 86,331 (47.253) (41.346)	(43.138) (37.746) 82,435 (45.120) (39.480) 86,331 (47.253) (41.346)	(45.120) (39.480) 86,331 (47.253) (41.346) 90,379 (49.469) (43.285)	(46.023) (40.270) 88,058 (48.198) (42.173) 92,187 (50.458) (44.151)	93,426 (51.136) (44.744) 97,698 (53.475)	91,084 (49,854) (43,622) 95,294 (52,159) (45,639)	97,20 (53.20) (50.65) (44.49)
18	Landscape Architect Principal Engineer Assistant Senior Planner Chief WWTP Operator Payroll Processing Manager Project Manager Resource Coordinator Senior Code Enforcement Officer Senior Electricial Inspector Senior Electrician Senior Fire Inspector Senior GIS Analyst Senior Landscape Architect Senior Plumber Senior Plumber Senior Plumbing Inspector Supervising Accountant Associate Planner General Crew Chief (40 hours) Maintenance Supervisor (WWTF) Network Manager Electrician Crew Chief Supervising Code Enforcement Officer	S H	(34.666) (30.332) 66,278 (36.277) (31.742) 69,355 (37.961) (33.216) 72,543 (39.706)	(37.029) (32.400) 70,796 (38.750) (33.906) 74,084 (40.549) (35.481) 77,489 (42.413)	78,813 (43,138) (37,746) (45,224) (36,071) 78,813 (43,138) (37,746)	(41.224) (36.071) 78,813 (43.138) (37.746) 82,435 (45.120) (39.480) 86,331 (47.253)	(43.138) (37.746) 82,435 (45.120) (39.480) 86,331 (47.253) (41.346) 90,379 (49.469)	90,379 (43.285) 94,567 (51.761)	92,187 (50.458) (44.151) 96,458 (52.796)	93,426 (51.136) (44.744) 97,698 (53.475)	91,084 (49.854) (43.622) 95,294 (52.159) (45.639) 99,652 (54.544)	97,20 (53.202) (46.553) (40.515) 92,90 (50.852) (44.495) 97,20 (46.552) (46.553) (46.652) (46.652)

2027 Salary Schedule A - 3.6% Increase over 2026

	salaried employees (2027 total work hours)		1,827	1,827	1,827	1,827	1,827	1,827	1,827	1,827	1,827	1,827
	hourly employees (2027 total work hours)		2,088	2,088	2,088	2,088	2,088	2,088	2,088	2,088	2,088	2,088
GRADE	CLASS TITLE		STEP A	STEP B	STEP C	STEP D	STEP E	STEP F	STEP G	STEP H	STEP I	STEP J
1	File Clerk		32,169	34,401	36,635	38,867	40,613	42,340	43,187	44,471	45,361	46,268
-	Receptionist	S	(17.608)	(18.829)	(20.052)	(21.273)	(22.229)	(23.175)	(23.638)	(24.341)	(24.828)	(25.324)
2	· ·	-						` '				
2	Clerk	S	32,813	35,089	37,367	39,644	41,425	43,188	44,050	45,361	46,268	47,193
	Clerk Typist	3	(17.960)	(19.206)	(20.453)	(21.699)	(22.674)	(23.639)	(24.111)	(24.828)	(25.325)	(25.831)
3	Assessment Clerk		38,583	39,597	40,613	42,340	44,070	45,961	46,880	48,164	49,127	50,110
	Clerk Stenographer	S	(21.118)	(21.673)	(22.229)	(23.175)	(24.122)	(25.156)	(25.660)	(26.363)	(26.890)	(27.427)
4	Junior Systems Software Specialist		40,224	41,282	42,340	44,070	45,961	47,991	48,950	50,234	51,239	52,264
	Laboratory Assistant	S	(22.016)	(22.596)	(23.175)	(24.122)	(25.156)	(26.268)	(26.793)	(27.496)	(28.045)	(28.606)
	Recreation Assistant	Н	(19.264)	(19.771)	(20.278)	(21.106)	(22.012)	(22.984)	(23.444)	(24.059)	(24.540)	(25.030)
5	Account Clerk		40,986	42,528	44,070	45,961	47,991	50,145	51,148	52,432	53,481	54,551
-	Account Clerk Typist	S	(22.433)	(23.277)	(24.122)	(25.156)	(26.268)	(27.446)	(27.995)	(28.698)	(29.273)	(29.858)
	Senior Clerk											
	Senior Clerk Typist											
6	Engineer Assistant		42,744	44,351	45,961	47,991	50,145	52,314	53,360	54,644	55,737	56,852
-	Police Complaint Writer (40 hours)	S	(23.396)	(24.276)	(25.156)	(26.268)	(27.446)	(28.634)	(29.206)	(29.909)	(30.508)	(31.118)
	Records Inventory Clerk	H	(20.471)	(21.241)	(22.012)	(22.984)	(24.016)	(25.054)	(25.556)	(26.171)	(26.694)	(27.228)
	Refuse Control Clerk		(20.172)	(221212)	(22.022)	(22.501)	(2 11020)	(25.05.)	(25.550)	(20:272)	(20.03.1)	(271220
	Senior Account Clerk											
	Senior Account Clerk Typist											
	Senior Clerk Stenographer											
	WWTP Process Controller (40 hours)											
7	Cook		12 672	AE 021	47.001	EO 14E	E2 214	E / C 1 O	EE 701	E 6 00 6	E 0 12E	59,287
	Principal Clerk Typist	S	43,672 (23.904)	45,831 (25.085)	47,991 (26.268)	50,145 (27.446)	52,314 (28.634)	54,610 (29.890)	55,701 (30.488)	56,986 (31.191)	58,125 (31.814)	(32.450)
	Principal Tax Clerk	H	(20.916)	(23.083)	(22.984)	(24.016)	(25.054)	(26.154)	(26.677)	(27.292)	(27.837)	(28.394)
	Secretarial Stenographer	- 11	(20.510)	(21.550)	(22.304)	(24.010)	(25.054)	(20.154)	(20.077)	(27.232)	(27.037)	(20.334)
	Supervising Tax Clerk											
			45.600	47.000		50.044			50045	50.504	50.500	64.00
8	Administrative Assistant	-	45,632	47,888	50,145	52,314	54,610	57,075	58,217	59,501	60,692	61,905
	Building & Zoning Clerk	S	(24.976)	(26.211)	(27.446)	(28.634)	(29.890)	(31.240)	(31.865)	(32.568)	(33.219)	(33.884)
	Case Manager (Senior Citizens) Community Center Manager	Н	(21.854)	(22.935)	(24.016)	(25.054)	(26.154)	(27.335)	(27.882)	(28.497)	(29.067)	(29.648)
	Community Development Assistant											
	Director of Volunteers											
	Principal Account Clerk Typist											
	Senior Records Inventory Clerk											
	,		47.000	10.500	50.044			50.000	60.070	60.455	60.400	
9	Assistant Food Service Manager		47,082	49,698	52,314	54,610	57,075	59,680	60,873	62,157	63,400	64,668
	Computer Support Assistant	S	(25.770)	(27.202)	(28.634)	(29.890)	(31.240)	(32.665)	(33.318)	(34.021)	(34.702)	(35.396)
	Junior Accountant	Н	(22.549)	(23.802)	(25.054)	(26.154)	(27.335)	(28.582)	(29.154)	(29.769)	(30.364)	(30.971)
	Program Leader (Youth) Recreation Leader (Senior Citizens)											
	Web Page Master											
	•											
10	Community Development Specialist		49,149	51,880	54,610	57,075	59,680	62,433	63,681	64,966	66,265	67,591
	Junior Planner	S	(26.902)	(28.396)	(29.890)	(31.240)	(32.665)	(34.173)	(34.856)	(35.559)	(36.270)	(36.995)
	Junior Planning Draftsworker	Н	(23.539)	(24.847)	(26.154)	(27.335)	(28.582)	(29.901)	(30.499)	(31.114)	(31.736)	(32.371)
	Laboratory Technician											
	- Environmental Chemistry (40 hours)											
	Paralegal Program Coordinator (Senior Services)											
	Public Relations Coordinator											
	Recreation Supervisor											
	Recreational Therapist											
	Social Caseworker (Senior Citizens)											
	Youth Service Program Coordinator											
	Youth Service Project Coordinator											

	omputer Support Technician eal Property Appraisal Technician	S	50,797 (27.803)	53,937 (29.522)	57,075 (31.240)	59,680 (32.665)	62,170 (34.028)	65,171 (35.671)	66,475 (36.385)	67,759 (37.087)	69,114 (37.829)	70,495
	sistant Accountant		53,115	56,397	59,680	62,433	65,171	68,195	69,559	70,843	72,260	73,709
	sistant Electronics Technician (WWTF)	S	(29.072)	(30.869)	(32.665)	(34.173)	(35.671)	(37.326)	(38.073)	(38.776)	(39.551)	(40.342
Bu	ıyer	Н	(25.438)	(27.010)	(28.582)	(29.901)	(31.212)	(32.661)	(33.314)	(33.929)	(34.607)	(35.299
	ood Service Manager											
	nior Engineer											
	oject Coordinator (Elderly Services) ght-of-Way Agent											
	enior Laboratory Technician											
	Environmental Chemistry											
13 As	sistant Code Enforcement Officer		55,565	58,999	62,433	65,171	68,195	71,254	72,680	73,964	75,444	76,952
As	sistant Electrical Inspector	S	(30.413)	(32.293)	(34.173)	(35.671)	(37.326)	(39.001)	(39.781)	(40.484)	(41.294)	(42.120
	sistant Fire Inspector	Н	(26.612)	(28.256)	(29.901)	(31.212)	(32.661)	(34.126)	(34.808)	(35.423)	(36.132)	(36.855
	sistant Planner sistant Plumber											
	sistant Plumbing Inspector											
	S Analyst											
	eals on Wheels Coordinator											
	anning Draftsworker											
	efuse Control Officer (40 Hours) enior Program Coordinator (Senior Citizens)											
	enior Recreation Supervisor											
	nior Youth Service Program Coordinator											
Yo	outh Center Director											
14 Bu	uilding Maintenance Mechanic (HVAC)		58,003	61,587	65,171	68,195	71,242	74,561	76,052	77,336	78,883	80,461
	ectronics Technician (WWTF)	S	(31.747)	(33.709)	(35.671)	(37.326)	(38.994)	(40.811)	(41.627)	(42.330)	(43.176)	(44.040
	anner	Н	(27.779)	(29.496)	(31.212)	(32.661)	(34.120)	(35.709)	(36.423)	(37.039)	(37.779)	(38.535
	eal Property Appraiser											
	sistant WWTP Chemist		60,694	64,444	68,195	71,242	74,561	78,027	79,588	80,872	82,489	84,139
	ommunity Liaison formation Technology Engineer	S H	(33.221)	(35.273)	(37.326)	(38.994)	(40.811) (35.709)	(42.708)	(43.562) (38.117)	(44.265)	(45.150) (39.506)	(46.053 (40.296
	etwork Coordinator	- ''	(23.000)	(50.004)	(32.001)	(34.120)	(55.765)	(37.303)	(50.117)	(30.732)	(33.300)	(40.230
Se	nior Engineer Assistant											
Se	nior Refuse Control Officer (40 hours)											
16 Ac	countant		63,405	67,323	71,242	74,561	78,027	81,650	83,284	84,568	86,259	87,984
	ode Enforcement & Planning Officer	S	(34.705)	(36.849)	(38.994)	(40.811)	(42.708)	(44.691)	(45.585)	(46.288)	(47.214)	(48.158
	ode Enforcement Officer	Н	(30.367)	(32.243)	(34.120)	(35.709)	(37.369)	(39.104)	(39.887)	(40.502)	(41.312)	(42.138
	pordinator Federal and State Aid ectrical Inspector											
	ectrician											
	nergency Services & Safety Coordinator											
Fi	re Inspector											
	formation Systems Analyst											
	nior Municipal Engineer											
	nior Sanitary Engineer umber											
	umbing Inspector											
Pr	ogram Supervisor Youth / Recreation											
	nior Planning Draftsworker											
	enior Real Property Appraiser											
	echnical Support Services Specialist affic Safety Program Coordinator											
	eb Developer											
W	astewater Pretreatment Coordinator											
17 La	nds cape Architect		65,614	70,087	74,561	78,027	81,650	85,403	87,111	88,395	90,163	91,966
Pr	incipal Engineer Assistant	S	(35.914)	(38.362)	(40.811)	(42.708)	(44.691)	(46.745)	(47.680)	(48.382)	(49.350)	(50.337
Se	nior Planner	Н	(31.424)	(33.567)	(35.709)	(37.369)	(39.104)	(40.902)	(41.720)	(42.335)	(43.182)	(44.045)
18 Ch	nief WWTP Operator		68,664	73,345	78,027	81,650	85,403	89,439	91,228	92,512	94,363	96,250
	yroll Processing Manager	S	(37.583)	(40.145)	(42.708)	(44.691)	(46.745)	(48.954)	(49.933)	(50.636)	(51.649)	(52.682
	oject Manager	Н	(32.885)	(35.127)	(37.369)	(39.104)	(40.902)	(42.835)	(43.691)	(44.306)	(45.193)	(46.097
	esource Coordinator enior Code Enforcement Officer											
	enior Electrical Inspector											
	nior Electrician											
	nior Fire Inspector											
	nior GIS Analyst											
	enior Landscape Architect enior Plumber											
	enior Plumbing Inspector											
	pervising Accountant											
19 As	sociate Planner		71,852	76,751	81,650	85,403	89,439	93,633	95,505	96,790	98,725	100,700
Ge	eneral Crew Chief (40 hours)	S	(39.328)	(42.009)	(44.691)	(46.745)	(48.954)	(51.250)	(52.274)	(52.977)	(54.037)	(55.118
	aintenance Supervisor (WWTF)	Н	(34.412)	(36.758)	(39.104)	(40.902)	(42.835)	(44.843)	(45.740)	(46.355)	(47.282)	(48.228
	etwork Manager											
	ectrician Crew Chief		75,155	80,279	85,403	89,439	93,633	97,971	99,931	101,215	103,239	105,304
Su	pervising Code Enforcement Officer pervising Maintenance Mechanic (HVAC)	S	(41.136)	(43.940)	(46.745)	(48.954)	(51.250)	(53.624)	(54.697)	(55.400)	(56.507)	(57.638
	ibervising ivialitienance Mechanic (HVAC)	Н	(35.994)	(38.448)	(40.902)	(42.835)	(44.843)	(46.921)	(47.860)	(48.475)	(49.444)	(50.433
Su				0	0-						40	
Su	incipal Planner	S	76,657 (41.958)	81,884 (44.819)	87,110 (47.679)	91,227 (49.933)	95,506 (52.275)	99,930 (54.696)	101,930 (55.791)	103,239 (56.508)	105,304 (57.638)	107,411

2028 Salary Schedule A - 3.75% Increase over 2027

	salaried employees (2028 total work hours)		1,820	1,820	1,820	1,820	1,820	1,820	1,820	1,820	1,820	1,820
	hourly employees (2028 total work hours)		2,080	2,080	2,080	2,080	2,080	2,080	2,080	2,080	2,080	2,080
GRADE	CLASS TITLE		STEP A	STEP B	STEP C	STEP D	STEP E	STEP F	STEP G	STEP H	STEP I	STEP J
1	File Clerk		33,376	35,691	38,008	40,324	42,136	43,928	44,806	46,139	47,062	48,003
	Receptionist	S	(18.338)	(19.611)	(20.884)	(22.156)	(23.152)	(24.136)	(24.619)	(25.351)	(25.858)	(26.375
2	Clerk		34,044	36,405	38,768	41,131	42,979	44,807	45,702	47,062	48,003	48,963
	Clerk Typist	S	(18.705)	(20.003)	(21.301)	(22.599)	(23.615)	(24.619)	(25.111)	(25.858)	(26.376)	(26.903
3										49,970		
3	Assessment Clerk Clerk Stenographer	S	40,030 (21.994)	41,082 (22.573)	42,136 (23.152)	43,928 (24.136)	45,723 (25.122)	47,684 (26.200)	48,638 (26.724)	(27.456)	50,970 (28.005)	51,989 (28.565
	· ·	3										
4	Junior Systems Software Specialist		41,732	42,830	43,928	45,723	47,684	49,791	50,786	52,118	53,160	54,223
	Laboratory Assistant	S	(22.930)	(23.533)	(24.136)	(25.122)	(26.200)	(27.357)	(27.904)	(28.636)	(29.209)	(29.793
	Recreation Assistant	Н	(20.064)	(20.591)	(21.119)	(21.982)	(22.925)	(23.938)	(24.416)	(25.057)	(25.558)	(26.069
5	Account Clerk		42,523	44,123	45,723	47,684	49,791	52,025	53,066	54,398	55,486	56,596
	Account Clerk Typist	S	(23.364)	(24.243)	(25.122)	(26.200)	(27.357)	(28.585)	(29.157)	(29.889)	(30.487)	(31.097
	Senior Clerk											
	Senior Clerk Typist											
6	Engineer Assistant		44,347	46,015	47,684	49,791	52,025	54,275	55,361	56,694	57,827	58,984
	Police Complaint Writer (40 hours)	S	(24.366)	(25.283)	(26.200)	(27.357)	(28.585)	(29.822)	(30.418)	(31.150)	(31.773)	(32.409
	Records Inventory Clerk	Н	(21.320)	(22.122)	(22.925)	(23.938)	(25.012)	(26.094)	(26.616)	(27.257)	(27.802)	(28.358
	Refuse Control Clerk											
	Senior Account Clerk											
	Senior Account Clerk Typist											
	Senior Clerk Stenographer											
	WWTP Process Controller (40 hours)											
7	Cook		45,310	47,550	49,791	52,025	54,275	56,658	57,790	59,123	60,304	61,510
	Principal Clerk Typist	S	(24.896)	(26.126)	(27.357)	(28.585)	(29.822)	(31.131)	(31.753)	(32.485)	(33.134)	(33.797
	Principal Tax Clerk	Н	(21.784)	(22.860)	(23.938)	(25.012)	(26.094)	(27.239)	(27.784)	(28.424)	(28.992)	(29.572
	Secretarial Stenographer											
	Supervising Tax Clerk											
8	Administrative Assistant		47,343	49,684	52,025	54,275	56,658	59,216	60,400	61,733	62,968	64,227
	Building & Zoning Clerk	S	(26.013)	(27.299)	(28.585)	(29.822)	(31.131)	(32.536)	(33.187)	(33.919)	(34.598)	(35.289
	Case Manager (Senior Citizens)	Н	(22.761)	(23.887)	(25.012)	(26.094)	(27.239)	(28.469)	(29.039)	(29.679)	(30.273)	(30.878
	Community Center Manager											
	Community Development Assistant											
	Director of Volunteers											
	Principal Account Clerk Typist											
	Senior Records Inventory Clerk											
9	Assistant Food Service Manager		48,847	51,561	54,275	56,658	59,216	61,918	63,156	64,488	65,778	67,093
	Computer Support Assistant	S	(26.839)	(28.330)	(29.822)	(31.131)	(32.536)	(34.021)	(34.701)	(35.433)	(36.142)	(36.864
	Junior Accountant	Н	(23.484)	(24.789)	(26.094)	(27.239)	(28.469)	(29.768)	(30.363)	(31.004)	(31.624)	(32.256
	Program Leader (Youth)											
	Recreation Leader (Senior Citizens)											
	Web Page Master											
10	Community Development Specialist		50,992	53,825	56,658	59,216	61,918	64,774	66,069	67,402	68,750	70,125
	Junior Planner	S	(28.018)	(29.574)	(31.131)	(32.536)	(34.021)	(35.590)	(36.302)	(37.034)	(37.775)	(38.530
	Junior Planning Draftsworker	Н	(24.516)	(25.877)	(27.239)	(28.469)	(29.768)	(31.142)	(31.764)	(32.405)	(33.053)	(33.714
	Laboratory Technician											
	- Environmental Chemistry (40 hours)											
	Paralegal											
	Program Coordinator (Senior Services)											
	Public Relations Coordinator											
	Recreation Supervisor											
	Recreational Therapist											
	Social Caseworker (Senior Citizens)											
	Youth Service Program Coordinator											
	Youth Service Project Coordinator											

11	Computer Support Technician Real Property Appraisal Technician	S	52,702 (28.957)	55,959 (30.747)	59,216 (32.536)	61,918 (34.021)	64,501 (35.440)	67,615 (37.151)	68,967 (37.894)	70,300 (38.626)	71,705 (39.399)	73,139 (40.186
12	Assistant Accountant Assistant Electronics Technician (WWTF)	S	55,107 (30.278)	58,512 (32.150)	61,918 (34.021)	64,774 (35.590)	67,615 (37.151)	70,753 (38.875)	72,168 (39.653)	73,500 (40.385)	74,970 (41.192)	76,469 (42.016
	Buyer Food Service Manager	Н	(26.494)	(28.131)	(29.768)	(31.142)	(32.507)	(34.016)	(34.696)	(35.337)	(36.043)	(36.764
	Junior Engineer Project Coordinator (Elderly Services)											
	Right-of-Way Agent Senior Laboratory Technician - Environmental Chemistry											
13	Assistant Code Enforcement Officer	-	57,649	61,212	64,774	67,615	70,753	73,926	75,405	76,738	78,273	79,83
	Assistant Electrical Inspector Assistant Fire Inspector Assistant Planner	S H	(31.675) (27.716)	(33.633)	(35.590)	(37.151)	(38.875)	(40.619)	(41.432)	(42.164)	(43.007) (37.631)	(38.384
	Assistant Plumber Assistant Plumbing Inspector											
	GIS Analyst Meals on Wheels Coordinator											
	Planning Draftsworker Refuse Control Officer (40 Hours)											
	Senior Program Coordinator (Senior Citizens) Senior Recreation Supervisor											
	Senior Youth Service Program Coordinator Youth Center Director											
14	Building Maintenance Mechanic (HVAC) Electronics Technician (WWTF)	S	60,178 (33.065)	63,896 (35.108)	67,615 (37.151)	70,753 (38.875)	73,913 (40.612)	77,357 (42.504)	78,904 (43.354)	80,237 (44.086)	81,841 (44.967)	83,478 (45.867
	Planner Real Property Appraiser	Н	(28.932)	(30.719)	(32.507)	(34.016)	(35.535)	(37.191)	(37.935)	(38.575)	(39.347)	(40.134
15	Assistant WWTP Chemist Community Liaison	S	62,970 (34.599)	66,861 (36.737)	70,753 (38.875)	73,913 (40.612)	77,357 (42.504)	80,953 (44.480)	82,572 (45.369)	83,905 (46.101)	85,582 (47.023)	87,29 (47.964
	Information Technology Engineer Network Coordinator	H	(30.274)	(32.145)	(34.016)	(35.535)	(37.191)	(38.920)	(39.698)	(40.339)	(41.145)	(41.968
	Senior Engineer Assistant Senior Refuse Control Officer (40 hours)											
16	Accountant		65,783	69,848	73,913	77,357	80,953	84,712	86,407	87,739	89,494	91,283
	Code Enforcement & Planning Officer Code Enforcement Officer	S H	(36.145) (31.626)	(38.378)	(40.612) (35.535)	(42.504) (37.191)	(44.480) (38.920)	(46.545) (40.727)	(47.476) (41.542)	(48.208) (42.182)	(49.172) (43.026)	(50.156 (43.886
	Coordinator Federal and State Aid Electrical Inspector Electrician											
	Emergency Services & Safety Coordinator Fire Inspector											
	Information Systems Analyst Junior Municipal Engineer											
	Junior Sanitary Engineer											
	Plumber Plumbing Inspector											
	Program Supervisor Youth / Recreation Senior Planning Draftsworker											
	Senior Real Property Appraiser Technical Support Services Specialist											
	Traffic Safety Program Coordinator Web Developer											
17	Wastewater Pretreatment Coordinator Landscape Architect		68,075	72,715	77,357	80,953	84,712	88,605	90,377	91,710	93,544	95,415
	Principal Engineer Assistant Senior Planner	S H	(37.404) (32.728)	(39.953) (34.959)	(42.504) (37.191)	(44.480) (38.920)	(46.545) (40.727)	(48.684) (42.599)	(49.658) (43.451)	(50.390) (44.091)	(51.398) (44.973)	(52.426 (45.873
18	Chief WWTP Operator Payroll Processing Manager	S	71,239 (39.142)	76,096 (41.811)	80,953 (44.480)	84,712 (46.545)	88,605 (48.684)	92,793 (50.985)	94,649 (52.005)	95,981 (52.737)	97,901 (53.792)	99,860
	Project Manager Resource Coordinator	Н	(34.250)	(36.584)	(38.920)	(40.727)	(42.599)	(44.612)	(45.504)	(46.145)	(47.068)	(48.009
	Senior Code Enforcement Officer Senior Electrical Inspector											
	Senior Electrician Senior Fire Inspector											
	Senior GIS Analyst Senior Landscape Architect											
	Senior Plumber											
	Senior Plumbing Inspector Supervising Accountant											
19	Associate Planner General Crew Chief (40 hours)	S	74,546 (40.959)	79,629 (43.752)	84,712 (46.545)	88,605 (48.684)	92,793 (50.985)	97,144 (53.376)	99,087 (54.443)	100,419 (55.175)	102,427 (56.279)	104,476 (57.405
	Maintenance Supervisor (WWTF) Network Manager	Н	(35.839)	(38.283)	(40.727)	(42.599)	(44.612)	(46.704)	(47.638)	(48.279)	(49.244)	(50.229
20	Electrician Crew Chief Supervising Code Enforcement Officer	S	77,973 (42.842)	83,289 (45.763)	88,605 (48.684)	92,793 (50.985)	97,144 (53.376)	101,645 (55.849)	103,678 (56.966)	105,011 (57.698)	107,110 (58.852)	109,253
	Supervising Maintenance Mechanic (HVAC)	H	(37.487)	(40.043)	(42.599)	(44.612)	(46.704)	(48.868)	(49.845)	(50.486)	(51.495)	(52.525
21	Principal Planner	S	79,532 (43.699)	84,954 (46.678)	90,377 (49.658)	94,649 (52.005)	99,087	103,678 (56.966)	105,752 (58.106)	107,111 (58.852)	109,253 (60.029)	111,439 (61.230
		Н	(38.236)	(40.843)	(43.450)	(45.504)	(47.638)	(49.845)	(50.842)	(51.496)	(52.525)	(53.576

2024 Salary Schedule B - Includes 2% Retro

			Sche	dule B SALA	ARY PLAN 202	24 (includes	2% Retro)					
GRADE	CLASS TITLE	STEP A	STEP B	STEP C	STEP D	STEP E	STEP F	STEP G	STEP H	STEP I	STEP J	STEP K
1	Recreation Attendant "B"	14.04	14.23	14.42	14.62	15.21	15.83	16.51	16.83	17.39	17.74	18.10
2	Cleaner Kitchen Helper Messenger	15.54	15.78	16.02	16.25	16.95	17.63	18.41	18.78	19.34	19.72	20.11
3	Laborer	17.75	18.41	19.08	19.99	21.07	22.03	23.12	23.58	24.14	24.63	25.12
4	Maintenance Worker	19.02	19.73	20.45	21.41	22.49	23.45	24.50	24.99	25.54	26.05	26.58
5	Senior Maintenance Worker	19.07	20.02	20.96	22.21	23.28	24.44	25.53	26.04	26.60	27.13	27.68
6	Dog Control Officer Recreation Attendant "A"	19.65	20.62	21.60	22.50	23.52	24.64	25.75	26.26	26.82	27.35	27.90
7	Automotive Mechanic Laborer Crew Chief	20.04	21.04	22.03	23.28	24.53	25.75	26.97	27.51	28.07	28.63	29.20
8	Working Auto Crew Chief Working Crew Chief	21.78	22.75	23.76	24.85	25.97	27.13	28.47	29.61	30.93	32.64	34.08

2025 Salary Schedule B – Includes 3% increase

GRADE	CLASS TITLE	STEP A	STEP B	STEP C	STEP D	STEP E	STEP F	STEP G	STEP H	STEP I	STEP J	STEP K
1												
2	Cleaner	16.25	16.50	16.74	17.46	18.16	18.96	19.34	19.92	20.31	20.72	21.13
	Kitchen Helper											
	Messenger											
3	Laborer	18.96	19.65	20.59	21.70	22.69	23.81	24.29	24.86	25.37	25.87	26.38
	Recreation Attendant "B"											
4	Maintenance Worker	20.32	21.06	22.06	23.17	24.16	25.23	25.74	26.31	26.83	27.37	27.92
5	Senior Maintenance Worker	21.59	22.88	23.98	25.17	26.30	26.82	27.40	27.95	28.51	29.08	29.66
6	Dog Control Officer	22.25	23.18	24.23	25.38	26.52	27.05	27.62	28.17	28.73	29.31	29.9
	Recreation Attendant "A"											
7	Automotive Mechanic	22.69	23.98	25.27	26.52	27.78	28.34	28.91	29.49	30.07	30.67	31.28
	Laborer Crew Chief											
8	Working Auto Crew Chief	24.47	25.59	26.75	27.95	29.32	30.50	31.85	33.62	35.10	35.8	36.52
	Working Crew Chief											

2026 Salary Schedule B - Includes 3.75% increase

GRADE	CLASS TITLE	STEP A	STEP B	STEP C	STEP D	STEP E	STEP F	STEP G	STEP H	STEP I	STEP J	STEP K
1												
2	Cleaner	16.86	17.12	17.37	18.11	18.84	19.67	20.07	20.66	21.07	21.49	21.92
	Kitchen Helper											
	Messenger											
3	Laborer	19.67	20.39	21.36	22.51	23.54	24.70	25.20	25.80	26.32	26.84	27.37
	Recreation Attendant "B"											
4	Maintenance Worker	21.09	21.85	22.88	24.04	25.06	26.18	26.70	27.30	27.84	28.40	28.97
5	Senior Maintenance Worker	22.40	23.74	24.88	26.12	27.28	27.83	28.42	28.99	29.58	30.17	30.77
6	Dog Control Officer	23.08	24.05	25.14	26.33	27.52	28.06	28.66	29.23	29.81	30.41	31.02
	Recreation Attendant "A"											
7	Automotive Mechanic	23.54	24.88	26.22	27.52	28.82	29.40	30.00	30.59	31.20	31.82	32.45
	Laborer Crew Chief											
8	Working Auto Crew Chief	25.39	26.55	27.75	28.99	30.42	31.64	33.05	34.88	36.42	37.14	37.89
	Working Crew Chief											

2027 Salary Schedule B - Includes 3.6% increase

GRADE	CLASS TITLE	STEP A	STEP B	STEP C	STEP D	STEP E	STEP F	STEP G	STEP H	STEP I	STEP J	STEP K
1												
2	Cleaner	17.47	17.73	17.99	18.76	19.52	20.38	20.79	21.41	21.83	22.27	22.71
	Kitchen Helper											
	Messenger											
3	Laborer	20.38	21.13	22.13	23.32	24.39	25.59	26.11	26.72	27.26	27.80	28.35
	Recreation Attendant "B"											
4	Maintenance Worker	21.84	22.64	23.71	24.90	25.97	27.12	27.66	28.28	28.84	29.42	30.01
5	Senior Maintenance Worker	23.21	24.59	25.77	27.06	28.27	28.83	29.45	30.04	30.64	31.26	31.88
6	Dog Control Officer	23.91	24.91	26.04	27.28	28.51	29.07	29.69	30.28	30.89	31.50	32.14
	Recreation Attendant "A"											
7	Automotive Mechanic	24.39	25.77	27.16	28.51	29.86	30.46	31.08	31.69	32.32	32.97	33.62
	Laborer Crew Chief											
8	Working Auto Crew Chief	26.30	27.51	28.75	30.04	31.52	32.78	34.24	36.14	37.73	38.48	39.25
	Working Crew Chief											

2028 Salary Schedule B – Includes 3.75% increase

GRADE	CLASS TITLE	STEP A	STEP B	STEP C	STEP D	STEP E	STEP F	STEP G	STEP H	STEP I	STEP J	STEP K
1												
2	Cleaner	18.12	18.40	18.67	19.47	20.25	21.14	21.57	22.21	22.65	23.10	23.56
	Kitchen Helper											
	Messenger											
3	Laborer	21.14	21.92	22.96	24.20	25.30	26.55	27.09	27.73	28.29	28.85	29.42
	Recreation Attendant "B"											
4	Maintenance Worker	22.66	23.49	24.60	25.83	26.94	28.14	28.70	29.34	29.92	30.52	31.14
5	Senior Maintenance Worker	24.08	25.51	26.74	28.07	29.33	29.91	30.55	31.16	31.79	32.43	33.08
6	Dog Control Officer	24.81	25.85	27.02	28.30	29.58	30.16	30.80	31.42	32.04	32.69	33.34
	Recreation Attendant "A"											
7	Automotive Mechanic	25.30	26.74	28.18	29.58	30.98	31.60	32.24	32.88	33.54	34.20	34.88
	Laborer Crew Chief											
8	Working Auto Crew Chief	27.29	28.54	29.83	31.16	32.70	34.01	35.52	37.49	39.14	39.92	40.73
	Working Crew Chief											

2025 Salary Schedule C - Includes 3% increase over 2024 Retro

	salaried employees (2025 total work hours)		1,827	1,827	1,827	1,827
	hourly employees (2025 total work hours)		2,088	2,088	2,088	2,088
GRADE	CLASS TITLE		STEP A	STEP B	STEP C	STEP D
13	Public Safety Dispatcher (40 hours)		51,712	57,976	67,322	71,593
		S	(28.304)	(31.733)	(36.848)	(39.186
		Н	(24.766)	(27.766)	(32.242)	(34.288
15	Senior Public Safety Dispatcher		56,390	63,232	73,641	77,77
		S	(30.865)	(34.61)	(40.307)	(42.569
		Н	(27.007)	(30.284)	(35.269)	(37.248

2026 Salary Schedule C - Includes 3.75% increase over 2025

	salaried employees (2026 total work hours)		1,827	1,827	1,827	1,827
	hourly employees (2026 total work hours)		2,088	2,088	2,088	2,088
GRADE	CLASS TITLE		STEP A	STEP B	STEP C	STEP D
13	Public Safety Dispatcher (40 hours)		53,651	60,150	69,847	74,278
		S	(29.366)	(32.923)	(38.23)	(40.656)
		Н	(25.695)	(28.808)	(33.451)	(35.574)
15	Senior Public Safety Dispatcher		58,505	65,603	76,403	80,691
		S	(32.022)	(35.908)	(41.819)	(44.166)
		Н	(28.019)	(31.419)	(36.591)	(38.645)

2027 Salary Schedule C - Includes 3.6% increase over 2026

	salaried employees (2027 total work hours) hourly employees (2027 total work hours)		1,827 2,088	1,827 2,088	1,827 2,088	1,827 2,088
GRADE	CLASS TITLE		STEP A	STEP B	STEP C	STEP D
13	Public Safety Dispatcher (40 hours)		55,583	62,316	72,361	76,952
	, , , , ,	S	(30.423)	(34.108)	(39.606)	(42.119)
		Н	(26.62)	(29.845)	(34.656)	(36.854)
15	Senior Public Safety Dispatcher		60,611	67,965	79,153	83,595
		S	(33.175)	(37.2)	(43.324)	(45.756)
		Н	(29.028)	(32.55)	(37.909)	(40.036)

2028 Salary Schedule C - Includes 3.75% increase over 2027

	salaried employees (2028 total work hours)		1,820	1,820	1,820	1,820
	hourly employees (2028 total work hours)		2,080	2,080	2,080	2,080
GRADE	CLASS TITLE		STEP A	STEP B	STEP C	STEP D
13	Public Safety Dispatcher (40 hours)		57,667	64,652	75,075	79,837
		S	(31.685)	(35.523)	(41.25)	(43.867)
		Н	(27.725)	(31.083)	(36.094)	(38.383)
15	Senior Public Safety Dispatcher		62,884	70,514	82,121	86,730
		S	(34.551)	(38.744)	(45.122)	(47.654
		Н	(30.233)	(33.901)	(39.481)	(41.697